
  

 

 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 20 September 2016 at 6.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 1RS 

 
 

 

Borough Council Representatives:  Councillors Horwood (Chairman), Dawlings (Vice-
Chairman), Chapelard, Hamilton, Moore, Nuttall, 
Ms Palmer and Podbury 

Independent Members:  Hedges, Hough, Quigley and Shiels 

Parish/Town Council Representatives: Councillors Coleman and Henshaw 

Quorum: 3 Members, to include at least one independent member 

 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
Apologies for absence as reported at the meeting. 

2   Declarations of Interest   
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda. 
 
For any advice on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer. 

3   Notification of Visiting Members Wishing to Speak (in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 18):   
Members should indicate which item(s) they wish to speak on and the nature of their 
concern/question/request for clarification. 

4   Minutes of the Meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 26 July 2016  
(Pages 1 - 8) 
The Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous meeting, dated 26 July 2016, be 
signed as a correct record. The only issue relating to the minutes which can be discussed is 
their accuracy. 
 
In accordance with Council Meetings Procedure 16.1, the Chairman will sign the minutes of 
today’s proceedings at the next scheduled meeting. 

5   Report of Head of Legal Partnership and Monitoring Officer   

(A)   Update on Complaints Received Under the Members' Code of Conduct (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
 
 
 

6   Joint Report of Acting Head of Planning Services and Head of Legal Partnership and 
Monitoring Officer   

(A)   * Proposed Changes to the Constitution (Planning Scheme of Delegation) as 
Recommended by the Constitutional Review Working Party (Pages 13 - 30) 

7   Report of Head of Policy and Governance   

(A)   Annual Complaints Report and Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review (Pages 
31 - 54) 

8   Report of Director of Finance and Corporate Services (s151 Officer)   

(A)   Strategic Risk Report (Pages 55 - 72) 
(B)   External Auditor Procurement (Pages 73 - 88) 

9   Future Work Programme  (Pages 89 - 90) 

10   Urgent Business   

11   Date of Next Meeting -  Monday 5 December 2016 at 6pm   

 

 
 
Mike McGeary Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
mike.mcgeary@tunbridgewells.gov.uk Kent   TN1 1RS 
 Tel:  01892 554105 (direct line) 
 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 

mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free! 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   for details.  

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 

 
 
 
 

All visitors wishing to attend a public meeting at the Town Hall between the hours of 9.00am and 
5.00pm should report to reception via the side entrance in Monson Way.  After 5pm, access will be via 
the front door on the corner of Crescent Road and Mount Pleasant Road, except for disabled access 
which will continue by use of an 'out of hours' button at the entrance in Monson Way. 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, pursuant to the 

Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
 
(2) Items marked * will be the subject of recommendations by the Committee to Full Council. 
 
(3) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
(4) Members of the public and other stakeholders are required to register with the Democratic 

Services Officer if they wish to speak on an agenda item at a meeting.  Places are limited to a 
maximum of four speakers per item.  The deadline for registering to speak is 4.00 pm the last 
working day before the meeting.  Each speaker will be given a maximum of 3 minutes to address 
the Committee. 

 
(5) Please note that this meeting may be recorded or filmed by the Council for administrative 

purposes.  Any other third party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential 
information is being considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to 
the Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. The Council is not liable for any third party 
recordings. 

 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from Democratic 
Services. 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 If you require this information in another format, 
please contact us on 01892 526121 

 

 Accessibility into and within the Town Hall - In response to the 
requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, the Council has 
provided the following features to overcome physical barriers to access.   

 There is a wheelchair accessible lift by the main staircase, giving access to the 
first floor where the committee rooms are situated.  There are a few steps 
leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a platform chairlift in the foyer. 

 

 Hearing Loop System - The Council Chamber and all the Committee Rooms 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems.  The Council 
Chamber also has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

 

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 26 July 2016 
 

Present: Councillor Horwood (Chairman) 
Councillors Chapelard, Hamilton, Moore, Nuttall and Podbury, Independent Members 

Mr Hedges, Mrs Hough, Mr Quigley and Mr Shiels  
and Parish/Town Councillors Coleman and Henshaw 

 
Officers in Attendance: Rich Clarke (Head of Audit Partnership), Lee Colyer (Director of 
Finance and Corporate Services), Jane Fineman (Head of Finance and Procurement), Jane 
Lynch (Head of Planning Services), Ade Oyerinde (Grant Thornton) and Darren Wells (Grant 
Thornton)  
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
AG16/16 
 

Apologies for absence were reported from Councillors Dawlings and Ms 
Palmer. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
AG17/16 
 

There were no declarations of interest made, within the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18) 
 
AG18/16 
 

There were no other members of the Council who had registered their wish to 
address the Committee, within the provisions of Council Meetings Procedure 
Rule 18. 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE DATED 
28 JUNE 2016 
 
AG19/16 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 28 
June 2016 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee 
dated 28 June 2016 be approved as a correct record. 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDIT FINDINGS 2015/16 
 
AG20/16 
 

Further to minute AG10/16, Jane Fineman, the Head of Finance and 
Procurement, presented the draft Annual Financial Report for 2015/16. She 
reminded the Committee that the draft had been submitted to the 28 June 
meeting for member comment. Mrs Fineman added that there had been no 
changes to the ‘statement of accounts’ since then but that one section of the 
accompanying narrative report had been amended, to take account of a point 
raised at the last meeting, in respect of planning application determinations. 
 
Mrs Fineman also drew attention to the ‘Audit Findings Report’, prepared by 
the authority’s external auditors Grant Thornton. She advised that the 
auditors had given the authority an ‘unqualified audit opinion’ and had not 
identified any adjustments affecting the Council’s reported financial position. 
Mrs Fineman added that this outcome represented a significant achievement 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

 
 

for the Borough Council, especially against the backdrop of completing the 
accounts two months early. 
 
Mrs Fineman sought the Committee’s approval to the draft Financial Report, 
adding that she hoped to have these published on the Council’s website by 
the 31 July deadline. 
 
Ade Oyerinde from Grant Thornton thanked Mrs Fineman and her team for 
their work and co-operation and added his congratulations for a successful 
outcome. 
 
Mr Tony Quigley acknowledged the amendment made in the narrative report 
as a result of his concerns expressed at the last meeting. He also asked why 
the salary of the Head of Legal Partnership Service, if it fell within the band 
specified, was not included in the statement of accounts section. 
 
Mrs Fineman advised that the post-holder was employed by Swale Borough 
Council, with Tunbridge Wells Borough Council meeting the relevant 
proportion of the costs; she added that the element of salary costs met by 
Tunbridge Wells was not within the required reporting band. 
 
Councillor Podbury drew attention to paragraph 5.2 of the covering report, 
where it stated that the wording in the narrative report had been amended, as 
set out on page 5. She wondered whether the reference to this section should 
have been ‘page 9’. Mrs Fineman advised that it was in fact page 5 of the 
Financial Report, but page 9 of the agenda papers, so both references were 
correct. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report, as set out in Appendix B of 

the report, be noted; 
 
(2) That the draft Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance 

Statement, all contained within the draft Annual Financial Report for 
2015/16, as set out in Appendix B of the report, be approved; 

 
(3) That the Chairman of the Committee and the Director of Finance and 

Corporate Services be authorised to sign a ‘Letter of Representation’ 
based on Appendix A of the Audit Findings Report; and 

 
(4) That a similar timetable be agreed for the approval of the Statement of 

Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement for the 2016/17 
accounts by 31 July 2017 and a special meeting of the Committee be 
scheduled for this purpose. 

 
STRATEGIC RISK REPORT 
 
AG21/16 
 

Rich Clarke, the Head of Audit Partnership, presented a risk management 
report, which described the authority’s arrangements for managing strategic 
risk. The report provided an update on the evaluated threat level as well as 
the controls in place for each of the 10 risks identified. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that Jane Lynch, the Head of Planning Services, had been 
invited to the meeting, in order to provide a detailed response to any 

Page 2

Agenda Item 4



3 
 
 

 
 

concerns members might have on the strategic risks for which she was the 
named, lead officer. From the appendix attached to the report, Mr Clarke 
advised that this was principally risk scenario 8 – ‘inspector decision which 
challenges housing targets versus housing supply’. 
 
Mrs Lynch advised that the authority effectively no longer had a five-year land 
supply based upon the direct result of two recent planning appeals. She 
added that the authority was in the current position of looking towards the 
Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for guidance as 
the basis for its decision-making in respect of applications relating to sites 
beyond the ‘limits to built environment’. As a result of that situation Mrs Lynch 
advised that the risk scenario had been slightly down-graded because it had 
reduced the risk of an inspector’s decision which challenged the authority’s 
housing target. 
 
Councillor Moore queried whether that was the right interpretation of the 
current position, adding that, if the authority had a five-year housing supply in 
place, it would have been in a strong position to have refused such planning 
applications in the first place. This, she added, suggested that the authority 
was currently in a weaker position, which might therefore have justified 
retention of this risk scenario’s ‘red flag’ status. 
 
Mrs Lynch accepted the argument in part. However, she advised that the 
authority currently had no choice other than to work within the guidance of the 
NPPF for relevant sites and the practical consequence of that was a 
reduction overall in the risk. 
 
Mr Hedges enquired if a question could be addressed to Mrs Lynch on risk 
scenario 1 – ‘cinema site remains undeveloped’, which the Head of Planning 
indicated she was happy to answer. She explained that, while no planning 
application had yet been made for this site by the new owners, there had 
been constant contact with them, including approaches made by the 
company before they had acquired the land.  
 
Mrs Lynch added that the authority had made it clear in all discussions that it 
was looking for early progress with the redevelopment of this site, a view 
which she said accorded with the owner’s own ambitions. Mrs Lynch added 
that the redevelopment was likely to see a mixed-use scheme result, with 
housing, a GP surgery and a cinema included. She added that the owners 
had held a community workshop on the site’s future on 18 July, ahead of a 
more comprehensive public consultation process after the summer holiday 
period.  
 
Mrs Lynch advised that there was every indication that the owners were 
backed by a strong team of professionals. 
 
Councillor Chapelard enquired if he could ask a question on risk scenario 10 
– the Development Programme – even though this was not within the remit of 
the Head of Planning Services. Lee Colyer, the Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services, advised that it might be preferable to defer this until the 
meeting of the Committee being held on 20 September, when the authority’s 
Chief Executive would be present, to answer questions on strategic risks. 
 
Councillor Moore raised a question on risk scenario 4 – ‘unable to plan 
financially over the longer term’. She asked whether the wording 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



4 
 
 

 
 

“Government has provided more flexibility surrounding council tax income” 
implied that business rate retention was a mitigating factor. 
 
Lee Colyer, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services said that, 
currently, the Government was consulting on that particular proposal, so it 
was too early to say whether this would become a mitigating factor. He added 
that the localisation of business rates, while being an attractive principle, was 
likely to have additional responsibilities attached. He said that, once more 
details were known, he would be reporting further to members. 
 
The Chairman, in seeking approval to the report’s recommendation, 
expressed his thanks to Mrs Lynch – who was leaving the authority that week 
– for her support for the Committee’s work and for her past help generally for 
members and he wished her well for the future. 
 
RESOLVED – That the risk management report and arrangements for 
managing strategic risk be noted. 
 

EXTERNAL AUDITOR PROCUREMENT 
 
AG22/16 
 

Rich Clarke, the Head of the Audit Partnership, presented a report, which 
outlined the three different route options the authority had in appointing its 
external auditor, a process which it was required to complete by 31 
December 2017. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that, before the Borough Council considered the 
procurement alternatives, suppliers must have had permission from the 
Financial Conduct Authority to provide public audit services. He added that, 
currently, there were five such suppliers to local authorities. 
 
Mr Clarke summarised the advantages/benefits and the disadvantages/risks 
of the three options available, which were described as: (i) a solo 
procurement and auditor panel; (ii) joint procurement; or (iii) outsourced 
procurement (known as a sector-led body). Under that third category, Mr 
Clarke advised that, since the publication of the agenda, the Government had 
announced that Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) had been 
approved as a ‘specified person’ under the legislation to procure public audit 
services within this category. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that PSAA would be making contact with local authorities 
later this year, setting out details of their services. In the meantime, Mr Clarke 
invited the members of the Committee to say whether, at this early stage, 
they had a preferred route, based upon the options described in the report. 
 
Mr Tony Quigley said that, based upon this initial report, it was possible that 
the sector-led body route might be the most advantageous but he added that 
this depended upon the number of local authorities signing-up to this option. 
He also asked how long an agreement under this option would last. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that PSAA were saying that they believed that some 200 
local authorities (which equated to approximately two-thirds of the total) might 
be following this option. He added that the probable time period for any such 
agreement would be three years, with an option of an additional two-year 
extension. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



5 
 
 

 
 

Mr Hedges said that the decision on which route to follow would be based on 
the key factor of cost versus control. He asked if it were possible to provide 
an estimate of the cost of the authority establishing and operating an auditor 
panel. Mr Clarke advised that this was not easy to estimate, as a key starting 
point would be whether the authority wished to pay an allowance to members 
of the panel and, if so, how much that would be. 
 
Mr Shiels asked if the authority followed the option (iii) route (sector-led 
body), would it still be able to ensure the current provider undertook a local 
audit. Mr Shiels also asked if the ‘duty of care’ provisions would still exist at a 
local council level. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that the issue of local audits would need to be a question 
to raise with PSAA. He added that, while authorities would certainly be able to 
comment on the arrangements, the final procurement decision would be for 
PSAA. Mr Clarke said that the level of influence any single authority could 
exert was a question to ask PSAA, as their arrangements for consulting with 
opted-in bodies had not yet been laid out. He added that these arrangements 
would come into effect from the audit of 2018/19, thus the existing system 
would continue until then. 
 
Councillor Moore raised a concern at the sector-led body process under 
which, if the Council decided to follow that option, the ‘specified body’ (likely 
to be PSAA) would negotiate contracts and appoint on behalf of councils. She 
felt that that level of ‘loss of control’ made this route unattractive. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that, previously, there had been a significant number of 
local authorities who had voiced their support for not selecting their auditor, 
which was why the ‘specified person’ route had been made available. 
However, he added that – equally – many authorities had expressed a wish to 
choose their auditor themselves. 
 
Councillor Moore also asked if the statement that approximately two-thirds of 
local authorities might follow the sector-led body route had been based on 
just a 20% survey response rate; Mr Clarke could not provide any further 
details which might have substantiated the claim made by PSAA. 
 
Councillor Moore raised two further questions: (a) would it be possible for the 
Audit and Governance Committee to act as the auditor panel under option (i); 
and (ii) could either the Mid-Kent Services Partnership (MKIP) or the 
possibility of a future West Kent devolved local authority provide a possible 
route for procurement? 
 
Mr Clarke advised that, under the requirements of this process, an auditor 
panel would have to be a sub-committee of this Committee, because of the 
need to have a majority of independent members.  As for a possible MKIP or 
other partnership route, Mr Clarke said that there had been no such 
proposals discussed to date. 
 
Mr Colyer advised that the topic of appointing an external auditor under the 
new process had been discussed at the recent Kent Finance Officers’ Group, 
where it was acknowledged that there was a high degree of risk involved in 
authorities procuring the service either alone or as part of a small group. He 
added that, at that stage, the general opinion was that the sector-led route 
was the most favourable, as it appeared to reduce the level of risk. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



6 
 
 

 
 

 
Mr Hedges drew attention to the current public audit suppliers and 
emphasised that all five companies listed were internationally-known and 
recognised. He felt that the risk to the authority of selecting from this list 
under option (i) was very small and asked why the Council would want to be 
part of a national scheme. 
 
Parish Councillor Coleman believed that there was insufficient information 
available at this stage to be able to express a preference. He asked firstly 
who was likely to be leading the possible Local Government Association 
group, should they be approved as a ‘specified body’ and, secondly, whether 
there were any other sector-led bodies likely to be approved by the 
Government. 
 
Mr Clarke advised that he was unaware of any other groups or bodies who 
had applied to the Secretary of State for approval. He said that, from viewing 
PSAA’s prospectus, it was apparent that there was a great deal of relevant 
experience the group had to offer. 
 
Mr Shiels sought further information about the benefits of the ‘economies of 
scale’ argument. He wondered whether Darren Wells from Grant Thornton 
was able to advise the Committee.  
 
Mr Wells felt that, from the evidence of the NHS, who had already started on 
the path of this new procedure – with some authorities procuring on their own 
and others forming groups – the ‘economies of scale’ argument was not a 
significant factor. In practical terms, he added, it was unlikely that providers 
would submit a higher price for authorities procuring on their own. 
 
Mr Colyer thanked the members of the Committee for their views, adding that, 
while it would have been helpful to have had a general steer towards a 
favoured option, he understood how further information was required before 
that could be done. He advised that, if the authority had heard more from 
PSAA before the September meeting, he would provide members with the 
details. He added that the final decision on this matter would have to be made 
by the Full Council. 
 
Mr Quigley welcomed this guidance, adding that he would like to hear more 
about the progress of NHS bodies, when this matter was discussed again. 
 
Mr Hedges advised that there were various frameworks in place across NHS 
organisations, adding that they would be required to make their decisions by 
31 December this year. He asked if his request for information about the cost 
of the Council establishing its own auditor panel might be provided for the 
September meeting, as well as what the views were of neighbouring/Kent 
local authorities. 
 
Councillor Moore felt that there was view amongst Committee members to 
obtain more control at a local level. She expressed surprise that there 
seemed to be a wider view that local authorities were pulling back from that 
opportunity, hence the need for further information before the Committee 
could give a firm steer. 
 
Mr Shiels believed that the loss of control in allowing PSAA to choose  for the 
authority would increase the likelihood of a change of auditor; he felt that this 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



7 
 
 

 
 

might have a disruptive effect, the risks of which should be carefully 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the latest information on external 
auditor procurement and welcomes further details in due course. 
 

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME 
 
AG23/16 
 

The Committee’s work programme was presented for members’ information.     
 
Lee Colyer, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services, said that, as a 
result of the previous item (minute AG22/16), this issue needed to be added 
to the list of items coming before the Committee at its 20 September meeting.   
 
RESOLVED – That, with the above addition, the work programme be noted. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
AG24/16 
 

It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would take place on 
Tuesday 20 September at 6pm. 
 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 6.55 pm. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit & Governance 
Committee  

20 September 
2016 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Update on complaints received under the 
Members’ Code of Conduct   

 

Final Decision-Maker Audit & Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Leader of the Council, Councillor Jukes 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer, Director of Finance & Corporate 
Services 

Head of Service John Scarborough, Head of Legal Partnership and 
Monitoring Officer 

Lead Officer/Report Author John Scarborough, Head of Legal Partnership and 
Monitoring Officer  

Classification Non-exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. That Members note the update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 

The report supports the Council’s commitment to probity in all our affairs as well as the 
values of openness and responsibility. 

  

Timetable 

Meeting Date 

Audit & Governance Committee 20 September 2016 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5(A)



 

Update on complaints received under the 
Members’ Code of Conduct   

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on complaints received under the Members’ 

Code of Conduct in the period ending on 2 September 2016. 
 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 The current Members’ Code of Conduct (“the Kent Code”) for Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council was adopted by the Borough Council on 18 July 2012. It was a 
requirement under the Localism Act 2011 that all councils adopt a Code of 
Conduct and that the Code adopted must be based upon the Nolan Principles 
of Conduct in Public Life.  

 

2.2 At the same Full Council meeting the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council also 
adopted arrangements for dealing with complaints (“the Kent Procedures”) 
made under the Code of Conduct in the Tunbridge Wells area. The current 
version of the Kent Procedures can be found on the Council’s website.  

 
2.3 The same Localism Act 2011 requirement to adopt a Code of Conduct also 

applied to all the parish and town councils in the Tunbridge Wells area. 
Therefore, at around the same time, i.e. July 2012, all the parish and town 
councils in the Tunbridge Wells area also adopted a Code of Conduct. 

 
2.4 All the parish and town councils in the Tunbridge Wells area adopted the same 

‘Kent Code’ (apart from Paddock Wood Town Council) which had been agreed 
across Kent and was indeed adopted by the County Council, most of the district 
councils and most of the parish and town councils in Kent. Paddock Wood 
Town Council adopted the NALC (National Association of Local Councils) Code 
of Conduct. 

 
2.5 Under the Localism Act 2011 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council is responsible 

for dealing with any complaints made under the Members’ Codes of Conduct 
throughout the Tunbridge Wells area. Thus the Borough Council is responsible 
for dealing with any complaints affecting members of, not only the Borough 
Council, but also all the parish and town councils in the Tunbridge Wells 
Borough.  

 
2.6 The arrangements for dealing with complaints (“the Kent Procedures”) that were 

adopted by the Borough Council therefore also apply in cases concerning 
parish and town councils. 

 
2.7 The Borough Council have resolved that oversight of the Kent Procedures falls 

under the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5(A)



 

3. UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS RECEIVED  
 
3.1 The Monitoring Officer provides an update to the Audit and Governance 

Committee upon complaints received at each meeting. The update is set out so 
that the names of the complainant and the member complained about are both 
kept confidential. The reason for this is that the Localism Act 2011 repealed the 
previous statutory process for dealing with complaints whereby decisions 
including names would be published. In the absence of that statutory process, 
complaints must be dealt with in accordance with the Data Protection Act which 
means such data must be kept confidential. 

 
3.2 Since the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee on 28 June 2016, 

one new complaint has been received. The Monitoring Officer is presently 
corresponding with the ‘Subject Member’ and the ‘Complainant’ to see whether 
an informal resolution of the complaint is possible.  

 
3.3    There was one outstanding complaint at the last meeting. Following 

consultation with the Council’s Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer 
concluded at initial assessment stage that the allegations did not amount to a 
breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
3.4    Finally, since the last meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee, John 

Scarborough, the Council’s Head of Legal Partnership and Monitoring Officer, 
has announced that he is leaving the Council on 2 October 2016 to take up 
another position. An Extraordinary Council Meeting is taking place on 7 
September 2016 with a recommendation that Estelle Culligan, Deputy Head of 
Legal Partnership, is appointed as the Council’s Interim Head of Legal 
Partnership and Monitoring Officer whilst a permanent replacement for the 
Head of Legal Partnership post is recruited. 

 
 

 
4 PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.1 That Members note the update on complaints received under the Members’ 
Code of Conduct. 

 

 
5 CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 This report does not require further consultation as it is for information only. 
 

 
6 NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
6.1 The Committee’s decision will be published in the minutes of this meeting on 

the Council’s website in due course. 
 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5(A)



 

 
7      CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 

Issue Implications 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

It is a requirement under the Localism Act 2011 that all 
Councils adopt a Code of Conduct and that the Code adopted 
must be based upon the Nolan Principles of Conduct in Public 
Life. The Members’ Code of Conduct was adopted by Full 
Council on 18 July 2012 and can be found on the Council’s 
website. 

Finance and 
other resources 

If a complaint proceeds to investigation then it can be carried 
out by an external person. If this is the case, there will be a fee 
for whichever external person carries out the work. 

Staffing 
establishment 

No issues. 

Risk 
management   

An effective complaints system is part of an effective system of 
governance. 

  

Environment  
and sustainability 

There are no relevant issues identified within this report. 
 

Community 
safety 

 

There are no relevant issues identified within this report. 

Health and 
Safety 

There are no relevant issues identified within this report. 
 

Health and 
wellbeing 

There are no relevant issues identified within this report. 
 

Equalities The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote 
or low relevance to the substance of the Equality Act. There is 
no apparent equality impact on end users. 

 
8      REPORT APPENDICES 
 

None 
 

 
9    BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
None 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5(A)



 

Audit and Governance 
Committee  

20 September 
2016 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? No 

 

*Proposed changes to the Constitution (Planning 
Scheme of Delegation) as recommended by the 
Constitutional Review Working Party 

 

Final Decision-Maker Full Council  

Portfolio Holder(s)  The Leader, Councillor Jukes and the Portfolio-holder 
for Planning & Transportation, Councillor McDermott 

Lead Director  Jonathan MacDonald, Director of Planning and 
Development  

Head of Service Stephen Baughen – Acting Head of Planning  

Lead Officer/Report Author Stephen Baughen 

Classification Non-exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. That, in order to ensure the Constitution is up-to-date and provides for good decision-
making, the Full Council be recommended to approve the following: 

 

(a) ‘Notifications’ - amend paragraphs 8.1 and 8.5 of Section 8 of Table 3 to Part 3 
of the Constitution, as set out in paragraphs 2.11 and 2.12 below; and 

 

(b) ‘Non-residential threshold’ - amend paragraph 8.3 of Section 8 of table 3 to Part 
3, as set out in paragraph 2.15 below.   

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Confident Borough ensuring that “Notifications” are determined within legislative 
time limits (otherwise they have deemed consent) and by ensuring that robust 
decision making processes for major non-residential planning applications are in 
place such that all relevant matters are properly and thoroughly considered 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Constitutional Review Working Party  11 August 2016 

Audit and Governance Committee  20 September 2016 

Council 12 October 2016 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

*Proposed changes to the Constitution (Planning 
Scheme of Delegation) as recommended by the 
Constitutional Review Working Party  

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Under the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Constitution, the Audit and 

Governance Committee is responsible for “oversight of the effectiveness of the 
Constitution and making appropriate recommendations for change”. The 
Constitutional Review Working Party (“the CRWP”) meets regularly to review 
the Constitution. 

 
1.2 The CRWP reviewed elements of the Constitution at their meeting on 11 August 

2016 at the request of officers and supports the recommended changes set out 
in this report. 

 
1.3 The Council has a statutory duty to secure continuous improvement in the way 

in which its functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
Resolution of Full Council Meeting (20 April 2016) 
 

2.1 At the Full Council Meeting on 20 April 2016, Agenda Item 9 proposed a 
number of amendments to the Planning Scheme of Delegation (Section 8 of 
Table 3 to Part 3) set out in the Constitution.  The resolution of Full Council was 
to refer these back to the CRWP for further consideration and recommendation 
to the Audit and Governance Committee, and subsequently, to the Full Council.   
 

2.2 The proposed changes in Agenda Item 9 included: 
 

- the removal of superfluous wording in relation to the general delegations to all 
chief officers;  

- an adjustment to the executive functions delegated to the Director of Planning 
and Development to ensure that all relevant functions are covered;  

- clarification and correction of terminology in relation to those applications to be 
automatically referred to Committee when recommended for approval;  

- the renumbering of six paragraphs within Section 8 of Table 3 to Part 3 of the 
Constitution so that it is clearer, with consequential re-numbering of 
subsequent paragraphs;  

- a minor adjustment to wording to require that all enforcement notices and 
requisitions for information be jointly authorised by both the Head of Planning 
and the Head of Legal Partnership/Monitoring Officer (which reflects current 
practice);   

Page 14

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

- an adjustment to the sections listing the relevant legislation to ensure that this 
reflects current and relevant Acts.   
 

2.3 These could all be dealt with under the Monitoring Officer’s delegated powers 
as and when required. In retrospect, these proposed changes probably should 
not have been included in the original report to CRWP on 18 June 2015 (prior to 
Audit and Governance Committee on 29 March 2016 and Full Council on 20 
April 2016) because the sheer volume of changes made the item unnecessarily 
complex.  As and when the changes are made to the Constitution under the 
Monitoring Officer’s delegated powers, these will be reported to CRWP.   

 

2.4 The only substantive changes to the Planning Scheme of Delegation proposed 
at the Full Council meeting were in relation to the two items below, which were 
put to the CRWP on 11 August 2016.   

 
2.5 Two amendments were also proposed by Cllr Stewart at the Full Council 

meeting on 20 April 2016.  Officers have discussed these with Cllr Stewart, and 
the results of these discussions will be reported back to CRWP at its next 
meeting.   
 
Background to change 1 

 
2.6 This proposed change relates to one of the exceptions under which matters are 

not delegated to the Head of Planning for decision. Specifically, this is where 
any member of the Council requests that an application be determined by the 
Planning Committee and states the material planning grounds for doing so, and 
the reason why that application warrants determination at the Committee, i.e. a 
“call-in”.   

 
2.7 The current wording of the Constitution enables members to make such a “call-

in” request for applications and notifications.  Due to the limited legislative time-
scale for determination and the default “approval” if they are not determined 
within these timescales (please see below), it is recommended that the ability to 
call in notifications is removed from the Constitution.   

 
2.8 “Notifications” are not planning applications.  Some works can be carried out 

under permitted development (i.e. do not require planning permission) without 
the need for any application/notification to the Local Planning Authority (LPA).  
Other works and changes of use of buildings can be carried out under permitted 
development, subject to submission of a “notification”.  The scope of matters 
which can be assessed under a notification is very limited.  The procedure for 
assessment of notifications is time limited, with the default position being that if 
no decision is made by the due date approval is automatically granted.  The 
timescales vary between notifications; the longest is 56 days.     

 
2.9 There is no legislative requirement to notify parish/town councils of notifications, 

but they are included on the “weekly list” published by TWBC.  TWBC 
determined approximately 100 notifications in 2015/16 (as compared to 
approximately 1,650 applications for planning permission and listed building 
consent).   

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

2.10 National legislation requires that there are certain planning applications which 
substantially depart from policy where, once a Local Planning Authority has 
resolved to grant planning permission, it is necessary to consult with the 
Secretary of State (SoS), as the SoS may wish to “call in” the application to 
determine himself.  This method of communication by which an LPA consults 
with the SoS is sometimes (as in paragraph 8.5 page 42 of the current 
Constitution) referred to as a notification.  Having regard to the comments of the 
CRWP and in order to avoid any confusion with the term “notification” referred 
to above, it is considered pertinent to amend paragraph 8.5 (page 42) of the 
Constitution to prevent any ambiguity.   

 
2.11 Accordingly, it is proposed that paragraph 8.1 of Section 8 of Table 3 to Part 3 

of the Constitution be amended as such (the existing words to be removed are 
shown as struck-through):  

 

8.1  those applications or notifications that any member of the Council 
requests be determined by the Planning Committee and the grounds on which it 
warrants discussing by the Planning Committee (such must be made in writing 
to the Head of Planning specifying material planning grounds on which the 
request is made and received within 21 days or publication of the weekly list 
whichever is the latter);….. 

 
2.12 It is also proposed that Paragraph 8.5 be amended as such (the existing words 

to be removed are shown as struck-through and additional words shown in 
italics):  
 
8.5 those applications or notifications where there is a significant departure 
from Development Plan policy and which would be required to be the subject of 
a notification to consultation with the Secretary of State; 

 
Background to Change 2 
  

2.13 To ensure that the most significant decisions for approval are consistently taken 
by members at the Planning Committee (i.e. without the need for “call-in”) it is 
proposed that the threshold for non-residential development be lowered from 
5,000 m2 to 2,000 m2.  In practice, this is the criterion that is already being 
used for significant/contentious applications that fall below the current 5,000 m2 
threshold, with these being referred by the Head of Planning to the Planning 
Committee for decision where the recommendation is for approval.   

 
2.14 A recent example of such an application was the reconfiguration and extension 

of Royal Victoria Place, which (as it was not “called-in”) could have been 
determined under delegated powers.   

 
2.15 Accordingly, it is proposed that the Constitution be amended as such:  

 

8.3 proposals recommended for approval (but not including Reserved 
Matters, or variation of conditions on a major application including material 
minor amendments or applications for a material minor amendment) 
comprising: 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

(a) twenty or more dwellings (detailed and outline applications) except where 
the application is for a substitution of house types on a scheme already 
benefiting from an extant planning permission; 
(b) commercial floor space of 5000 m2 or more comprised in Use Class B1 
(Business) and/or Use Class B2 (General Industrial) and/or Use Class B8 
(Storage or Distribution) non-residential floor space by means of new build or 
conversion of 2000m2 or more.  

 
 

 
3 AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 The proposed changes outlined above need to be considered by the Council to 

ensure that the Constitution is clear, up–to-date and provides certainty for all 
interacting with the Planning Service, but also to ensure that significant planning 
decisions are made at the right level and that the risk of development being 
allowed to go ahead by default is limited. 
 
 
Do Nothing 

3.2 After consideration of the issues raised, the Council could choose to do nothing 
and continue to operate in accordance with the Constitution as currently drafted.  
This would result in the potential for approvals to be made by default and 
decisions on significant planning proposals being made by officers remaining. 
Whilst the Head of Planning could continue to use referral powers to ensure 
these decisions are taken by the Planning Committee, the Constitution does not 
provide the necessary level of certainty about the decision making procedures 
for those seeking planning permission which could lead to complaint and/or 
challenge. 

 
3.3 Furthermore, the “do nothing” option would mean leaving the rules and 

procedures unchanged thereby potentially failing in the statutory duty to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which the Council’s functions are 
exercised. 

 
 Approve as set out 
3.4 To ensure that the Constitution is: (a) up-to-date; (b) provides certainty for all 

users of the service; (c) requires significant planning applications recommended 
for approval to be determined by the Planning Committee where there has been 
no Member call-in; and (d) minimises the risk of notifications being approved by 
default, both recommendations proposed need to be agreed. 

 
 Approve some but not all recommendations 
3.5 This is an option, the effect of which would be dependent on which 

recommendations were not taken forward. 
 

 
4 PREFERRED OPTIONS AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Preferred Option: (a) The Committee is asked to approve and recommend to 

Full Council the proposed changes to paragraphs 8.1 and 8.5 of Section 8 of 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

Table 3 to Part 3 of the Constitution to ensure it is up-to-date and provides for 
good decision making; and 
 
(b) The Committee is asked to approve and recommend to Full Council the 
proposed changes to paragraph 8.3 of Section 8 of Table 3 to Part 3 of the 
Constitution to ensure it is up-to-date and provides for good decision making. 

 

 
5 CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 The proposed changes were discussed with the Portfolio Holder for Planning 

and Transportation, who supported them and also with CRWP who agreed 
them, subject to further explanation regarding “notifications” and a further 
change to paragraph 8.5 (page 42) to remove any ambiguity regarding 
consultation with the SoS on certain applications.   The draft minutes from the 
meeting are attached as Appendix C. 

 

 

6 NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DECISION 

 
6.1 The recommendations in this report, if agreed, will be progressed as set out in 
 the timetable on the front sheet. 
 
6.2 If agreed by Full Council on 12 October 2016, the approved changes to the 
 Constitution will be made. 
 

 
7 CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

(name of officer 
and date) 

Legal including 
Human Rights Act 

The Council is required by the Local 
Government Act 2000 to have a Constitution 
that is up to date and fit for purpose. The 
Council also has a statutory duty to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. Review of the Constitution 
demonstrates compliance with the requirements 
and duties. 

Keith Trowell 

Principal Lawyer 

and Deputy 

Monitoring Officer 
(31/08/16) 

Finance and other 
resources 

There are no new financial implications. Lee Colyer 

Director of 

Finance and 

Corporate 

Services (s151 

Officer) 

(5/9/16) 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

Equalities Decision-makers are reminded of the 
requirement under the Public Sector Equality 
Duty (s149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due 
regard to (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of 
opportunity between people from different 
groups, and (iii) foster good relations between 
people from different groups. The decisions 
recommended through this paper have remote 
or low relevance to the substance of the Equality 
Act. However, it should be noted that the 
recommendations in this paper do not alter the 
need to consider the requirements of the Public 
Sector Equality Duty within individual planning 
decisions. 

Sarah Lavallie 

West Kent 

Equalities Officer 

(8/9/16) 

 
8 REPORT APPENDICES 

 
The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 
report: 
 
Appendix A: [Extract from part 3 of the Constitution (updated June 2016) – showing 
proposals as tracked changes] 
 
Appendix B: [Extract from part 3 of the Constitution (updated June 2016) – current, 
‘clean’ version, before recommended changes] 
 
Appendix C: [Notes of Constitutional Review Working Party meeting held on 
Thursday 11 August 2016] 
 
 

 
9 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 
The Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Constitution - December 2013 (as updated 
June 2016) 
 
Constitutional Review Working Party 11 August 2016 2016 - Agenda Items 5 and 6: 
Delegations to Head of Planning  
 
Notes of Constitutional Review Working Party meeting held on 11 August 2016  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6(A)



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – tracked version of Section 8 of Table 3 to Part 3 of the 

Constitution (the existing words to be removed are shown as struck-

through and additional words shown in italics): 

DELEGATIONS TO HEAD OF PLANNING 
 
The following matters below are delegated to the Head of Planning: 
 
8. Determine all forms of planning and other applications and all notifications submitted 
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, Localism 
Act 2011 or under any related principal or secondary legislation, except the following: 
 
8.1 those applications or notifications that any member of the Council requests be 
determined by the Planning Committee and the grounds on which it warrants discussing by 
the Planning Committee (such must be made in writing to the Head of Planning specifying 
material planning grounds on which the request is made and received within 21 days or 
publication of the weekly list whichever is the latter); 
 
8.2 any application made by a member or officer of the Planning Department or relative or 
partner of such persons, or person who has been a member or officer of the Planning 
Department in the three years prior to making the application; 
 
8.3 proposals recommended for approval (but not including Reserved Matters, or variation of 
conditions on a major application including material minor amendments or applications for a 
material minor amendment) comprising:  
 

(a) twenty or more dwellings (detailed and outline applications) except where the 
application is for a substitution of house types on a scheme already benefiting from 
an extant planning permission; 

(b) commercial floor space of 5000 m2 or more comprised in Use Class B1 (Business) 
and/or Use Class B2 (General Industrial) and/or Use Class B8 (Storage or 
Distribution) non residential floor space by means of new build or conversion of 
2000m2 or more. 

 
8.4 applications which would otherwise be delegated but which the Head of Planning 
Services considers should come before the Committee; 
 
8.5 those applications or notifications where there is a significant departure from 
Development Plan policy and which would be required to be the subject of a notification to 

consultation with the Secretary of State; 

 
8.6 any proposal involving the Borough Council either as applicant or landowner, either on 
its own or jointly with another individual or body. 

Page 21

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B – current, ‘clean’ version (before recommended changes are 

made) of Section 8 of Table 3 to Part 3 of the Constitution 

DELEGATIONS TO HEAD OF PLANNING 
 
The following matters below are delegated to the Head of Planning: 
 
8. Determine all forms of planning and other applications and all notifications submitted 
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, Localism 
Act 2011 or under any related principal or secondary legislation, except the following: 
 
8.1 those applications or notifications that any member of the Council requests be 
determined by the Planning Committee and the grounds on which it warrants discussing by 
the Planning Committee (such must be made in writing to the Head of Planning specifying 
material planning grounds on which the request is made and received within 21 days or 
publication of the weekly list whichever is the latter); 
 
8.2 any application made by a member or officer of the Planning Department or relative or 
partner of such persons, or person who has been a member or officer of the Planning 
Department in the three years prior to making the application; 
 
8.3 proposals recommended for approval (but not including Reserved Matters, or variation of 
conditions on a major application including material minor amendments or applications for a 
material minor amendment) comprising:  
 

(a) twenty or more dwellings (detailed and outline applications) except where the 
application is for a substitution of house types on a scheme already benefiting from 
an extant planning permission; 

(b) commercial floor space of 5000 m2 or more comprised in Use Class B1 (Business) 
and/or Use Class B2 (General Industrial) and/or Use Class B8 (Storage or 
Distribution). 

 
8.4 applications which would otherwise be delegated but which the Head of Planning 
Services considers should come before the Committee; 
 
8.5 those applications or notifications where there is a significant departure from 
Development Plan policy and which would be required to be the subject of a notification to 
the Secretary of State; 
 
8.6 any proposal involving the Borough Council either as applicant or landowner, either on 
its own or jointly with another individual or body. 

Page 23

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
 

 
 

CONSTITUTION REVIEW WORKING PARTY 
 

Thursday, 11 August 2016 
 

Present: Mr Tony Quigley (Chairman) 
Councillors March, Munn and Rankin 

 
Officers in Attendance:  Stephen Baughen (Building Control & Development Manager),  
Cheryl Clark  (Democratic Services Officer), John Scarborough (Head of Legal Partnership 
and Monitoring Officer) and Keith Trowell (Senior Lawyer and Deputy Monitoring Officer). 
 
Other Members in Attendance: None   
 
APOLOGIES 
 
1 
 

There were no apologies for absence. 
 

NOTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING DATED 19 FEBRUARY 2016 
 
2 
 

Members of the Constitution Review Working Party (CRWP) considered the 
notes of the previous meeting dated 19 February 2016 and confirmed that 
they provided a correct record of the meeting. 
 
Councillor Rankin, however, referred to the matter arising in respect of note 2 
(i) that related to the protocol on call in to the Planning Committee and in 
particular that the reasons for call used to be for more than just material 
planning considerations.  She had since found in her records a paper copy of 
a protocol, which sought to supplement the Constitution for the purposes of 
planning, and was issued by the then Head of Planning Services (David 
Prentis) in June 2005.  This protocol included the wording “Members should 
exercise discretion in using this power and should only call in applications 
where they feel that there is a significant planning issue that warrants 
consideration by a Planning Committee or where there is a significant level of 
local concern.”  Councillor Rankin referred specifically to the element “a 
significant level of local concern” and asked when it had ceased to be a part 
of any similar versions of the protocol that had since been included within the 
Constitution.  Councillor Rankin also questioned that this had effectively 
allowed the transfer to officers of a power previously held by elected 
members.  Mr Scarborough undertook to investigate the issue and respond to 
the CRWP. 
 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
3 
 

The Chairman noted that the terms of reference had been included on the 
agenda for information. 
 
Councillor March, however, referred to the terms of reference and the 
requirement that each member of the CRWP be responsible for reporting the 
views of their allocated group of members.  She found this difficult because 
the agenda was only issued a week before the meeting and did not tie in with 
the timing of political party group meetings.  She wondered if the agenda 
could be emailed out to all members beforehand to ask for comments. Mr 
Scarborough was not sure that this would be practical and noted that a much 
longer lead in time would be required to allow matters to be referred to 

Page 25

Appendix C



2 
 
 

 
 

political groups. Mrs Clark indicated this would probably mean extending the 
period by 4 to 6 weeks to include scheduled Conservative Group meetings.   
She confirmed that currently only formal council meeting agendas were 
emailed to all members.  Mr Scarborough explained that the CRWP were only 
required to provide an initial view at this stage and the Chairman noted that 
all members had the opportunity to discuss issues at Audit & Governance 
before any subsequent referral to Full Council.  Councillor Rankin did not 
consider that members would be interested in receiving the CRWP agenda 
but instead she thought the issues should be discussed at group meetings as 
this was the correct forum to obtain political support.  Councillor Munn 
advised that he represented two groups but rather than hold meetings, he 
had managed to speak to the smaller number of members concerned by 
telephone.  The Chairman asked whether it was simply a matter of flagging 
contentious matters at an early stage.  Councillor March confirmed that last 
time, the Conservative Group had been aware of the proposed planning 
changes beforehand so it was possibly more of an internal group matter to 
resolve. 
 
In summary, it was agreed that there should be a 4-6 lead in time for the 
agenda to allow CRWP members time to obtain the views of their allocated 
group of members. 
 

PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME 2016/2017 
 
4 
 

Mr Scarborough summarised each of the items as listed and detailed on the 
work programme.  
 

PART 3, ANNEX C, TABLE 3, DELEGATIONS TO HEAD OF PLANNING, 8.1 AND 8.5 
 
5 
 

Mr Baughen introduced the proposal to remove ‘notifications’ from the 
indicated paragraphs relating to call in. 
 
Councillor March asked for an explanation of notifications and Mr Baughen 
explained that they were similar to permitted development and often related 
to changes of use.  Following submission of a notification, and in the absence 
of any relevant matters being raised within a period of 56 days, permission 
was automatically granted.  Mr Trowell added that the scope of matters that 
could be raised in relation to notifications was very limited. 
 
Councillor Rankin asked if notifications appeared on the weekly planning lists 
and if not they should be advised to ward members to ensure they were kept 
fully informed. 
 
Note: Subsequent to the meeting, Mr Baughen emailed members of the 
working group to confirm that notifications were in fact included in the weekly 
planning list. 
 
Councillor Rankin queried the remaining use of the word “notification” in 
paragraph 8.5.  The response was that this was to be used in the sense of 
the verb “to notify” rather than the name of a type of planning application.  To 
avoid any confusion, Mr Baughen suggested that “notification” in this case 
might be restated as “referral”.  The paragraph could therefore be restated to 
read (without track changes) as follows: 
 
 

Page 26

Appendix C



3 
 
 

 
 

‘Those applications where there is a significant departure from Development 
Plan policy and which would be required to be the subject of a referral to the 
Secretary of State’. 
 
Councillor March was aware in her role as a Parish Chairman that the Parish 
would like to be informed about the outcome of notifications.  Mr Baughen 
advised that legislation did not require Parish Councils to be advised but they 
were able to sign up, as could any individual, to receive updates on planning 
matters in a particular area.  Mr Baughen confirmed to Councillor Munn that 
this facility could also be used to obtain updates on “Permitted Development”.  
Councillor March asked if an explanation of how to sign up to receive updates 
could be sent out in the Members’ Newsletter. 
 
The Chairman asked if the proposed change was likely to cause any adverse 
or contentious impact and Mr Baughen advised it was only a straight forward 
correction.  The Chairman considered, however, that the subject matter might 
be unclear to some members of the Audit & Governance Committee and he 
suggested that a paragraph be included to provide an explanation about the 
nature of notifications as clarified above. 
 
On this basis it was agreed that the item go forward to the Audit & 
Governance Committee and Full Council as timetabled but with further 
explanation and discretion for Mr Baughen to change the final occurrence of 
the word notification as discussed. 
 
 

PART 3, ANNEX C, TABLE 3, DELEGATIONS TO HEAD OF PLANNING 8.3(B) 
 
6 
 

Mr Baughen introduced this item which would bring the size criteria for non-
residential applications down to 2000 m2 in line with other major applications.  
He added that in practice the Head of Planning Services had already been 
using her discretion to bring relevant items to Committee.  He quoted as an 
example the recently approved application for works at Royal Victoria Place, 
which could otherwise have been agreed under delegated powers.  
 
The Chairman asked why the word “commercial” had been replaced with 
“non-residential” and the significance of the removal of the use classes.  Mr 
Baughen explained that it was just a way of providing a simpler definition.  
Although it effectively increased the range of non-residential applications that 
could be considered by the Committee, in practice the number of items was 
likely to be small.  He was able to reassure the Chairman that the Planning 
Committee would not be inundated with work as a result of the proposal.  
Councillor March also considered members would find it acceptable. 
 
It was agreed that the item go forward to the Audit & Governance Committee 
and Full Council as timetabled. 
 
 

PART 3, ANNEX C, TABLE 3, APPENDIX 1, - MICRO CHIPPING OF DOGS 
 
7 
 

This item was a minor amendment to the Constitution under the Monitoring 
Officer’s Delegated Powers and was for information and noting only.  This 
item raised a number of issues, even though a minor amendment.  The 
Chairman commented that if the CRWP concluded that a topic did not qualify 
as a minor amendment then it would have to be re-submitted as a normal 

Page 27

Appendix C



4 
 
 

 
 

item of business. 
 
Councillor Rankin asked who had made the decision and questioned the 
principle of the Council taking on additional roles and responsibilities in a time 
of reduced funding, and when they were not obligated to by legislation.  Mr 
Scarborough explained that Gary Stevenson, Head of Environment and 
Street Scene had put forward the amendment.  Mr Scarborough and Mr 
Trowell also explained that council officers were already authorised to deal 
with stray dogs and this additional facility was ancillary to their existing role 
and would allow this matter to be dealt with more expediently and efficiently, if 
it was deemed appropriate. 
 
Mr Scarborough reminded members that this minor change was for noting 
only.  Wider issues relating to the scope of Council responsibilities were 
outside the remit of this group and he suggested that Councillor Rankin speak 
to Mr Stevenson for further clarification of her concerns.  Councillor March 
also suggested that an issue could be referred to Overview & Scrutiny for 
further investigation if required. 
 
 
Note: Subsequent to the meeting Councillor Rankin spoke with Mr Stevenson 
and it was ascertained that the cost of microchipping would be recoverable 
from the dog owner in addition to the existing chargeable costs.   
 
 

PART 3, ANNEX C, TABLE 3, APPENDIX 4, - HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE 
HIRE LICENSING 
 
8 
 

This item was a minor amendment to the Constitution under the Monitoring 
Officer’s Delegated Powers and was for information and noting only. 
 
Councillor Munn asked about costs if a licence was revoked and the decision 
was appealed.  The first right of appeal was to the Licensing Sub-Committee.  
Mr Scarborough advised that costs would only arise at Magistrates Court 
where costs would usually be awarded to the successful party.  
 
Councillor March checked that the matter had been notified to the Chairman 
of Licensing. 
 
 

PART 5, CODES AND PROTOCOLS, 5.11 PROTOCOL FOR MEMBERS TAKING PART 
IN THE PLANNING PROCESS 
 
9 
 

This item was a minor amendment to the Constitution under the Monitoring 
Officer’s Delegated Powers and was for information and noting only. 
 
 

PART 6, MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES SCHEME, SCHEDULES 1 AND 2 
 
10 
 

This item was a minor amendment to the Constitution under the Monitoring 
Officer’s Delegated Powers and was for information and noting only. 
 
 
 
 

Page 28

Appendix C



5 
 
 

 
 

AOB AND DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
11 
 

Mr Scarborough reminded members that the next meeting date would now 
need to be reviewed given the earlier decision to allow a 4-6 week lead in 
time before publication of the next agenda.  A new date would be circulated to 
members for agreement in due course. 
 
Finally, Mr Scarborough advised members that this would be his last meeting 
before leaving on 23 September and taking up another position.  Until such 
time as his replacement was appointed, his current deputy  Estelle Culligan 
would be acting as Monitoring Officer and Interim Head of the Legal 
Partnership. 
 
 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 10.50 am. 
 

Page 29

Appendix C



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit and Governance 
Committee 

20 September 
2016 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Complaints: Annual Review 2015-16 and Revised 
Complaints Policy 

 

Final Decision-Maker Audit and Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Councillor Jukes – Leader of the Council 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance and Corporate 
Services 

Head of Service Jane Clarke – Head of Policy and Governance 

Lead Officer/Report Author Ingrid Weatherup – Corporate Complaints and 
Freedom of Information Officer 

Classification Non-exempt) 

Wards affected N/A 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. That the Audit & Governance Committee note the customer feedback received 
during 2015-16 and the lessons learned as a result of this feedback;  

 

2. That the Audit & Governance Committee note the Annual Review letter published 
by the Local Government Ombudsman; and 
 

3. That the revised Complaints Procedure, as set out in Appendix B, be endorsed. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

The information in this report touches on all areas of the Strategic Compass through our 
customer commitments and the way in which we deliver our services.  In particular, the 
‘Our Customer’ section ensures that we treat customers fairly and with respect. The 
sections for ‘Our People’ and ‘Providing Value’ show how we aim to deliver our services.  
By ensuring that we deal with complaints effectively we aim to provide good quality 
customer service and ensure we continue to improve and develop our service.   

 

 
 
 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Audit and Governance Committee 20 September 2016 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

Complaints: Annual Review 2015-16 and Revised 
Complaints Policy 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a review of complaints received by Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council under the Council’s Complaints Procedure, from 1 April 2015 

to 31 March 2016, and presents the decisions of the Local Government 

Ombudsman in relation to those complaints which were escalated to the 

Ombudsman during the course of the year.  

 

 
2. CORPORATE COMPLAINTS REVIEW 
 

Number of Complaints 

 

2.1 Tunbridge Wells Borough Council operates a three stage Complaints Procedure 

and logs complaints on a centralised Customer Complaints spreadsheet. This 

report provides analysis of the complaints dealt with under the Council’s 

Complaints Procedure from the start of April 2015 to the end of March 2016.   

 

2.2 The Council recorded a total of 465 complaints during 2015-2016.  This is a 

decrease on the overall number recorded in 2014-15 (509 complaints).  The 

total number of complaints received during quarters three and four (272 

complaints) saw an increase on quarters one and two (192 complaints).  

 
 Council’s Complaints Performance 
 
2.3 A number of performance indicators are used to help track the percentage of 

complaints that have been escalated to the next level of the Complaints 

Procedure.   

 

2.4 For 2015-2016, the Performance and Governance Team reviewed the 

performance indicators for complaints handling, and we are now measuring 

performance against the following indicators (see figure 1 below): 

 
 

Performance Indicator 
End of year 

performance 
2015-2016 

Target 
2015-16 

Quarters 1 
and 2  

2015-16 

Quarters 3 
and 4 

2015-16 

% of complaints responded to 
within timescales 

83.5% 94% 75.3% 91.7% 

% of Stage 1 complaints 
responded to within timescale 

86.15% 
* New 

indicator 78.3% 94% 

% of Stage 2 complaints 
responded to within timescale 

78.95% 
* New 

indicator 65% 92.9% 

  Figure 1 – performance in 2015-2016 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

 How complaints are received  
 

2.4 The customer complaints spreadsheet tracks how people register their 

complaint.  People can record a complaint using feedback forms which are 

available at all Council offices including the Gateway and Weald Information 

Centre. Complaints can also be submitted electronically, either by email or using 

the online complaints form.   

  

           
          Figure 2 – method by which complaints are received 

 

2.5 During 2015-16, the majority of complaints received had been made through 

electronic means (the online feedback form was the most popular method of 

contact followed by email), which meets with the organisation’s priorities to 

direct contact with the Council through the Council’s digital channels.  

 

 Service trends 

 
2.6 The largest proportion of complaints recorded related to Parking Services, 

followed by the Assembly Hall, the Contracts Team and then Planning Services. 

This is consistent with previous years’ service trends, and an analysis of the 

types of complaints being received shows the following trends for these 

services: 

 

 Parking 

 Complaints received regarding operation of residents’ permit parking and 
changes to the scheme. 

 Complaints received regarding faults with machines in car parks. 

 Complaints received about the pay by phone service. 

 Complaints received about information/readability on Pay and Display 
machines/boards. 

 
 Assembly Hall Theatre 

 Complaints received in relation to specific performances. 

211 
200 

40 35 

15 
3 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

Feedback 
Form - 
Online 

Email Letter Phone Complaint 
Form 

Visit 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

 Complaints received in relation to the condition of seating within the theatre.  

 Complaints received in relation to the heat/temperature of the theatre during 
performances. 

 Complaints received in relation to the operation of the ice rink.  
 
 Contracts 

 Complaints received about the maintenance and condition of the football 
pitches at Foresters Football Club. 

 Complaints received regarding the service carried out by refuse collectors 
such as damage caused to bins and property. 

 Complaints related to the leisure centres operated by Fusion.    

 Complaints received regarding the actions of the Civil Enforcement Officers 
who are dealing with fixed penalty notices for littering.  

 Complaints received regarding dog fouling.  
 
 Planning 

 Complaints received relating to delays with processing of planning 
applications and correspondence. 

 Complaints related mainly to individual planning issues or dissatisfaction with 

the outcome of neighbouring planning applications. 

        

 
                Figure 4 – number of complaints received by service area 

 

2.7 The Council is committed to learning from complaints and improving our 
procedures as a result of feedback received. It is important to note that a 
number of lessons have been learnt as a result of the complaints received 
during 2014-15 and issues have since been resolved or new policies and 
procedures put in place. A number of these outcomes are listed in section 8 of 
this report. 

 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 

Parking 

Assembly Hall 

Contracts 

Planning 

Housing 

Revenues and Benefits 

Environmental Health 

Outside procedure 

Crematorium 

Gateway 

Licensing 

Finance 

Democratic Services 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

 Compensation 
 

2.8 Compensation payments are recommended when it is considered there are no 
other appropriate remedies to resolve a situation.   

 
2.9 The Council made the following compensation payments amounting to £499.88 

during 2015-2016: 
 

Service Area Amount Complaint 

Finance £100 Complaint regarding processing of a 
finance payment. 

Revenues and 
Benefits 

£115.88 Complaint regarding processing of 
Council Tax bill. 

Assembly Hall £284.00 Vouchers/refunds provided following a 
number of complaints regarding 
production, noise or heat issues. 

 

2.10 The Council also recommended two time and trouble payments during quarters 
three and four, however, these were not accepted by the complainants.  One 
related to a Stage 3 planning complaint amounting to £100 and the second 
related to an Ice Rink complaint amounting to £150.  

 

 

3. OMBUDSMAN COMPLAINTS REVIEW 

 

3.1 In total the Ombudsman received 21 complaints and enquiries about Tunbridge 

Wells Borough Council, and made decisions in 19 cases. The vast majority of 

these complaints and enquiries were either referred back to the Council for a 

local resolution, as they had prematurely contacted the Ombudsman, or were 

closed after initial enquiries. The Ombudsman’s letter can be found at appendix 

A. 

 

3.2 Of those that were considered in more depth by the Ombudsman, two 

complaints were not upheld, and two were upheld. For the two that were upheld, 

the details are as follows: 

 

Q1 & Q2 Summary Ombudsman Decision 

Complaint 1 Failure to record a requested 

change in service, and then to 

issue summons prematurely 

against the complainant. 

Upheld. 

 

The Ombudsman agreed that 

the Council had failed to 

record the request for a 

change in service properly, 

and had issued the summons 

for payment prematurely. 

 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

The remedy was to 

compensate the complainant 

and to apologise. 

Complaint 2 Failure to consider objections 

to a telecommunications mast. 

Upheld.  

 

The Ombudsman agreed that 

the Council had failed to take 

into consideration objections 

before issuing a decision 

notice. 

 

The suggested remedy was to 

apologise to the relevant 

parish council and 

complainants.  

 
 
3.3 Six complaints to the Ombudsman were closed after initial enquiries, and the 

details of these can be found below: 
 
 

Q1 & Q2 Summary Ombudsman Decision 

Complaint 1 The complainant was 
dissatisfied with the issuing 
and enforcement of a parking 
penalty. 

The Ombudsman concluded 
that they would not investigate 
this complaint as it was outside 
their jurisdiction. The 
complainant was advised that 
they had the right to appeal to 
a statutory tribunal if they 
believed the penalty was 
wrongly issued and to a court if 
something had gone wrong in 
the enforcement process.  
 
The Ombudsman will record 
the complaint in the published 
figures for the year ending 31 
March 2016 recorded as: 
Closed after initial enquiries - 
out of jurisdiction. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

Complaint 2 The complainant considered 
that the Council had failed to 
introduce policies which would 
increase the proportion of 
wheelchair accessible hire 
vehicles licensed to operate in 
the Borough. 
 

The Ombudsman concluded 
that it will not investigate the 
complaint about the Council’s 
policy on wheelchair 
accessible vehicles, and would 
exercise the general discretion 
open to it not to commence an 
investigation because it was 
the view of the Ombudsman 
that the policy was not 
unreasonable.  
 
The Ombudsman will include 
this complaint in the published 
figures for the year ending 31 
March 2016 recorded as: 
Closed after initial enquiries - 
no further action. 

Q3 & Q4 Summary Ombudsman Decision 

Complaint 3 The complainants consider that 
the Council as building control 
authority failed to inspect works 
at their home properly or often 
enough.  It therefore failed to 
identify defects in work and 
departures from the approved 
plans which would have 
required further Council 
approval.  As a result the 
complainants advised that they 
have incurred significant costs 
and are seeking £48,000 as a 
remedy. 

The Ombudsman will not 
investigate the complaint 
about the Council as building 
control authority failing to 
inspect works at the 
complainant’s home properly 
or often enough, or to identify 
defects in work and 
departures from the approved 
plans.  There are settled legal 
principles the injustice they 
claim cannot flow from the 
actions of the Council, and the 
Ombudsman cannot achieve 
for them the remedy they seek 
so an investigation is not 
warranted. 
 
The complaint will be recorded 
in the figures for year ending 
31 March 2016 under 
Planning and Development.  
Decision – Closed after initial 
enquiries – no further action. 

Complaint 4 Complaint about the Council’s 
grant of planning permission for 
a development near to the 
complainant.  
 

The Ombudsman will not 
investigate this complaint 
because the matter is out of 
time. 
 
The decision will be recorded 
in the published figures for 
year ending 31 March 2016 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

under the category – Planning 
and Development and the 
decision as Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of jurisdiction. 

Complaint 5 Complaint about the way the 
Council has dealt with the 
complainant’s planning 
application. 

The Ombudsman will not 
investigate this complaint 
because there is a right of 
appeal to a Planning 
Inspector. 
 
The decision will be recorded 
in the published figures for 
year ending 31 March 2016 
under the category – Planning 
and Development and the 
decision as: Closed after initial 
enquiries - out of jurisdiction. 

Complaint 6 Complaint about how the 
Council dealt with a planning 
application submitted by the 
complainant.  In particular, the 
complainant considered that 
the Council took too long to 
decide the application. 

The Ombudsman has advised 
that they will not investigate 
this complaint about how the 
Council dealt with a planning 
application.  The complainant 
had a right of appeal to a 
government minister.  It is 
unlikely the Ombudsman 
would find evidence of other 
fault causing the complainant 
significant injustice. 
 
The decision will be recorded 
in the published figures for 
year ending 31 March 2016 
under the category – Planning 
and Development and the 
decision as Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of jurisdiction. 
 

 

 

4. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION COMPLAINTS 

 

4.1 The Council has continued to see an upward trend in the number of Freedom of 

Information requests received through the Freedom of Information Act 2000 

(FOI) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). The legislation 

introduced by central government to increase transparency was thought to 

reduce the number of enquiries that public authorities receive. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

 

 

4.2 During 2015-2016, the Council received 760 Freedom of information requests, 
which was a slight decrease on the number received in 2014-15 (765).   

 
4.3 The largest proportion of FOI/EIR requests were sent to the Planning Team 

(20.7%) and the Revenues & Benefits Team (15.5%). Of the requests received 
by the Planning Team 47.8% were requests for information on land charges, 
and those received by the Revenues & Benefits Team frequently requested 
business rates information.  

 
4.4 For the FOI Team (14.3%) requests frequently related to Kent County Council 

referrals however we have seen an increased interest on requests about FOI 
such as number of requests received and number of exemptions applied.  

 
4.5 The Bereavement Services Team (6.5%) receive large numbers of requests for 

information on public health funerals and persons who have died without any 
next of kin. We have also seen an increase in interest on whether we contract 
out any genealogy services.  

 
4.6 Requests received by the Finance Team (6.2%) engage with various facilities of 

finance such as payroll, insurance, council spend, budgets, invoicing and 
procurement. 

 
4.7 FOI requests received by the Environmental Health Team (6.2%) related to 

licenses for various premises and activities such as dog breeders, pet stores 
and tattoo studios. Other requests received related to complaints received by 
the Environmental Team and the contaminated land register.  

 
4.8 Requests received by the Housing Team (6.1%) asked for information on 

homelessness and emergency/temporary accommodation, houses in multiple 
occupation (HMOs) and housing waiting lists. 

 
4.9 The Contracts Team (5%) (including Street Scene and Parks) received a large 

number of requests for information on existing contracts and other requests 
relating to fixed penalty notices (FPNs) issued for various street offences.  

 
4.10 Of the 765 requests responded to, five people subsequently requested the 

Information Commissioner to review Council’s decision. Three requests related 
to planning matters, one concerned a licensing matter and one related to HR.  

Page 40

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

 
4.11 The first requested all of the information held on the subject without redactions. 

The Council denied this and the decision was upheld. The person was advised 
to contact the Information Commissioner’s Office.  

 
4.12 The second related to a request for photographs held as part of a planning 

enforcement investigation. The Information Commissioner deemed that the 
photographs could be disclosed as they did not constitute personal data, and 
following the review, further photographs were disclosed to the enquirer. 

 
4.13 The third request for review related to information held about an environmental 

licensing case – clarification and further information was provided as part of the 
response to the request review.   

  
4.14 The fourth requested a review as the person considered the request should 

have been dealt with under the Environmental Information Regulations. The 
Council provided the information requested following the review. 

 
4.15 The fifth request for a review related to an HR matter.  The Council accepted 

that an error was made in determining whether the information was held but 
applied the Section 12 exemption. The person was advised that it would exceed 
the appropriate time limit to extract the information and was provided with the 
details of the Information Commissioner’s office if they remained dissatisfied 
with the decision. 

 

 
5. LEARNING FROM COMPLAINTS 

5.1 The Council aims to learn from complaints and to take action to improve the 
services provided.  

 
5.2 Last year, the Council agreed with 36% of the complaints that were received, 

and took steps to put things right. The authority partly agreed with 26%, which 
meant that there was some aspect of the complaint where the Council agreed it 
was at fault. 

 
5.3 An analysis of the complaints from last year shows a number of areas where 

there is an opportunity for the Council to learn as an organisation. In particular, 
the following lessons are felt to apply on a corporate-wide basis: 

 

Service area Service improvement 

Environment and 

Street Scene 

Information/Consultation 
 
When we change the way we do things, or when we 
are looking to put new services in place, we need to 
ensure that we inform/consult with residents who might 
be affected by any changes. 
 
The information/consultation we provide needs to be 
relevant and proportionate, as well as within good time 
(i.e. not delivered the day before the change is due to 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

take place). 
 

AHT 

Parking 

Planning 

Digital Transformation 
 
As we encourage more services to do more business 
digitally, we must ensure: 

 There are other methods still in place for those 
who do not want to interact digitally, or for times 
when digital methods go wrong or break down. 

 The information we say is available on our 
website is accurate and up-to-date. 

 Our digital services are easy to use and our 
website is user friendly. 

 

Revenues and 

Benefits 

Parking  

Data Protection 
 
That as an organisation, we understand how the Data 
Protection Act applies to digital information. We must 
ensure that the data we hold on residents and 
customers is kept securely, and that our processes and 
procedures when completing tasks are designed so 
that personal information is kept safe and private. 
 

 
 
6. AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPLAINTS POLICY 
 
6.1 The Complaints Team were asked to consider the current three stage 

complaints process, and to make proposals for how the process could be 
improved. The key outcomes were to improve the performance indicators for 
response times to complaints, reduce the administrative burden to services that 
the current three stage process creates, and improve corporate ownership and 
learning from complaints.  

 
6.2 Following discussion with Management Board on 16 August, a new Complaints 

Policy has been proposed that reduces the number of stages from three down 
to two. Alongside this, where there is already an alternative right of appeal or 
legal remedy, we have made it clear in the policy that we will not consider 
complaints that fall under this category. 

 
6.3 It is felt that a two stage process will cut down on the amount of duplication by 

officers when responding to complaints and will help to improve response times, 
which have been poor over the last year. Alongside this, as all Heads of Service 
will be required to triage and sign-off stage one complaints in their area, we 
expect to see an improvement in ownership and corporate learning as a result 
of this. 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

6.4 The proposed two stage Complaints Policy is available for comment and 
endorsement by the Audit and Governance Committee at appendix B. 

 

 
7. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
7.1 The main report is for information and enables the Audit and Governance 

Committee to understand the Council’s current performance in relation to 
complaints handling, and to receive an overview of the types of complaints 
received and the outcome of those which were escalated to the Local 
Government Ombudsman. 
 

7.2 The revised two stage Complaints Policy has been agreed at Management 
Board on 16 August, and is now presented to the Audit and Governance 
Committee for comment and endorsement. 

 

 
8. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
8.1 In respect of the main report there is no alternative action that could be taken. In 

respect of the revised Complaints Policy at appendix B, we could: 
 

 (a) maintain the status quo (the current three stage process would 
continue). This is not the preferred option as it does not resolve the 
issues that the Complaints Team were asked to look into over the 
summer period. 

  
  (b) endorse the attached revised policy. This is the preferred option as it 

is believed that this policy will help to reduce the administrative burden on 
services in terms of responding to complaints, and will create greater 
ownership of complaints at the first stage by making the relevant Head of 
Service responsible for replies.  

 

 
9. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
9.1 Management Board have been consulted on the revised Complaints Policy. 

There are no plans to consult with anyone else. 
 

 
10. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
10.1 Following the Audit and Governance Committee, should the revised policy be 

agreed then communication and training for all service managers (including 
Directors and Service Heads) will be provided on the new Complaints Policy. 

 
10.2 The learning from complaints for 2015-16 will be taken to Management Team as 

an information item, to ensure that all services are part of the learning from the 
complaints process.   

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

 
 
 
11. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

(name of 
officer and 
date) 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

Corporate complaints can sometimes result in 
accusations of maladministration for the 
authority, and can end up in costly legal 
battles when not managed properly. 

 

A well-run and robust complaints process is 
an essential tool in ensuring the Council is 
well-run, and can act as a barometer when 
services are starting to fail to meet their legal 
obligations. 

 

Whilst there are no direct legal implications 
arising from this report, it is important to 
recognise that this can be a highly litigious 
area, and the Council needs to do all it can to 
ensure service improvement and learning, 
and avoiding fines, court cases or significant 
costs. 

 

Keith Trowell 

Senior Lawyer 
and Deputy 
Monitoring 
Officer 

(1/9/16) 

 

Finance and 
other resources 

There are no direct financial implications 
arising from this report. However, a well-run 
complaints process gives the Council an early 
opportunity to ‘put things right’ when they 
have gone wrong, and can help to avoid large 
fines or significant costs awarded against the 
authority. 
 

Jane Fineman 

Head of 
Finance and 
Procurement 

(5/9/16) 

Staffing 
establishment 

There are no direct human resource issues 
arising from this report. 

 

Nicky Carter 

Head of HR 

(1/9/16) 

Risk 
management   

The complaints policy and procedure are not 
a part of the Council’s strategic risk register. 

 

The risks of any one particular thing 
happening, and then causing complaints, 
should be captured on individual service risk 
registers for action and mitigation.  

 

Ingrid 
Weatherup 

Corporate 
Complaints and 
FOI Officer 

 

(5/9/16) 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7(A)



 

Environment  
and sustainability 

There are no direct environment or 
sustainability issues as a result of this report. 

Karin Grey 

Sustainability 
Manager 

 

Community 
safety 

 

There are no direct community safety issues 
as a result of this report. 

Terry Hughes 

Community 
Safety Manager 

 

Health and 
wellbeing 

There are no direct Health and Wellbeing 
issues as a result of this report. 

Sarah Richards 

Healthy 
Lifestyles Co-
ordinator 

Health and 
Safety 

There are no direct Health and Safety issues 
as a result of this report. 

Mike Catling 

Health and 
Safety Advisor 

Equalities There are no direct Equalities issues as a 
result of this report. 

Sarah Lavallie 

West Kent 
Equalities 
Officer  

 
12. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 
report: 

 Appendix A: Local Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2015-16 

 Appendix B: Revised Complaints Policy 
 

 
13. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
None 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7(A)



This page is intentionally left blank



21 July 2016

By email

Wiliam Benson
Chief Executive
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Dear Wiliam Benson,

Annual Review Letter 2016

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the
Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received and the
decisions we made about your authority during the period. I hope that this information will prove
helpful in assessing your authority’s performance in handling complaints.

Last year we provided information on the number of complaints upheld and not upheld for the
first time. In response to council feedback, this year we are providing additional information to
focus the statistics more on the outcome from complaints rather than just the amounts received.

We provide a breakdown of the upheld investigations to show how they were remedied. This
includes the number of cases where our recommendations remedied the fault and the number
of cases where we decided your authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local
complaints process. In these latter cases we provide reassurance that your authority had
satisfactorily attempted to resolve the complaint before the person came to us. In addition, we
provide a compliance rate for implementing our recommendations to remedy a fault.

I want to emphasise that these statistics comprise the data we hold, and may not necessarily
align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include enquiries from
people we signpost back to the authority, but who may never contact you.

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our website,
alongside an annual review of local government complaints. The aim of this is to be transparent
and provide information that aids the scrutiny of local services.

Effective accountability for devolved authorities

Local government is going through perhaps some of the biggest changes since the LGO was
set up more than 40 years ago. The creation of combined authorities and an increase in the
number of elected mayors will hugely affect the way local services are held to account. We
have already started working with the early combined authorities to help develop principles for
effective and accessible complaints systems.

We have also reviewed how we structure our casework teams to provide insight across the
emerging combined authority structures. Responding to council feedback, this included
reconfirming the Assistant Ombudsman responsible for relationship management with each
authority, which we recently communicated to Link Officers through distribution of our manual
for working with the LGO.

Page 47

Appendix A



Supporting local scrutiny

Our corporate strategy is based upon the twin pillars of remedying injustice and improving local
public services. The numbers in our annual report demonstrate that we continue to improve the
quality of our service in achieving swift redress.

To measure our progress against the objective to improve local services, in March we issued a
survey to all councils. I was encouraged to find that 98% of respondents believed that our
investigations have had an impact on improving local public services. I am confident that the
continued publication of our decisions (alongside an improved facility to browse for them on our
website), focus reports on key themes and the data in these annual review letters is helping the
sector to learn from its mistakes and support better services for citizens.

The survey also demonstrated a significant proportion of councils are sharing the information
we provide with elected members and scrutiny committees. I welcome this approach, and want
to take this opportunity to encourage others to do so.

Complaint handling training

We recently refreshed our Effective Complaint Handling courses for local authorities and
introduced a new course for independent care providers. We trained over 700 people last year
and feedback shows a 96% increase in the number of participants who felt confident in dealing
with complaints following the course. To find out more, visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.

Ombudsman reform

You will no doubt be aware that the government has announced the intention to produce draft
legislation for the creation of a single ombudsman for public services in England. This is
something we support, as it will provide the public with a clearer route to redress in an
increasingly complex environment of public service delivery.

We will continue to support government in the realisation of the public service ombudsman, and
are advising on the importance of maintaining our 40 years plus experience of working with
local government and our understanding its unique accountability structures.

This will also be the last time I write with your annual review. My seven-year term of office as
Local Government Ombudsman comes to an end in January 2017. The LGO has gone through
extensive change since I took up post in 2010, becoming a much leaner and more focused
organisation, and I am confident that it is well prepared for the challenges ahead.

Yours sincerely

Dr Jane Martin

Local Government Ombudsman

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 48

Appendix A



Local Authority Report: Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
For the Period Ending: 31/03/2016

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website:
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics

Complaints and enquiries received

Adult Care
Services

Benefits and
Tax

Corporate
and Other
Services

Education
and

Children’s
Services

Environment
Services

Highways
and

Transport
Housing

Planning and
Development

Other Total

0 4 0 0 0 3 3 11 0 21

Decisions made Detailed Investigations

Incomplete or
Invalid

Advice Given
Referred back

for Local
Resolution

Closed After
Initial

Enquiries
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate Total

0 1 8 6 2 2 50% 19

Notes Complaints Remedied

Our uphold rate is calculated in relation to the total number of detailed investigations.

The number of remedied complaints may not equal the number of upheld complaints.
This is because, while we may uphold a complaint because we find fault, we may not
always find grounds to say that fault caused injustice that ought to be remedied.

The compliance rate is the proportion of remedied complaints where our
recommendations are believed to have been implemented.

by LGO

Satisfactorily
by Authority
before LGO
Involvement

Compliance
Rate

2 0 100%

P
age 49

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Complaints Procedure 

We welcome and value your feedback to help us improve our services. The aim of the 

Council’s complaints procedure is to: 

 Make it easy for customers who are dissatisfied to complain 

 Treat all complaints fairly and consistently 

 Try to resolve complaints at the initial point of contact 

 Improve our services by listening to and acting on customer feedback 

 

What is a Complaint?  

We define a complaint as: 

‘An expression of dissatisfaction about the standard of service, actions or lack of 

action by the Council, or by a contractor or third party that we use’.    

Requests for or enquiries about services do not come under our definition of a complaint.  A 

request for service may, however, result in a complaint if we fail to meet our service 

standards after receiving the initial enquiry. 

Some complaints may fall outside the scope of our procedure, or where there is an 

alternative right of appeal.  For example, there are statutory procedures for appeals against 

parking fines, planning applications, housing benefit decisions and reviews of homelessness 

decisions.  There is also a separate process for appeals against Fixed Penalty Notices 

issued for littering.   

The Council will not respond to complaints where there is an alternative right of appeal. 

However, we will let you know if your complaint needs to be dealt with in another way. 

 

How you can make a complaint 

You can make a complaint in the following ways: 

 On-line at http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/council/complaints-and-

feedback/complaints-and-suggestions  

 By email to complaints@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

If you are unable to use the internet or email, or would like to complain in a different way, we 

also accept complaints in person at our Gateway office, in writing, by telephone, or using the 

complaint form available at the Gateway and our other customer contact centres. 

 

  

Page 51

Appendix B

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/council/complaints-and-feedback/complaints-and-suggestions
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/council/complaints-and-feedback/complaints-and-suggestions
mailto:complaints@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


 

The Complaints Procedure 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council has a two stage Complaints Procedure. 

Stage 1 

We will try to resolve your complaint when you first contact us, but if we can’t or we need to 

look into your complaint further we will deal with your complaint at Stage 1 of our Complaints 

Procedure.     

The responsible Head of Service will investigate your complaint, and respond to you within 

15 working days of receipt of your complaint.  

If you are unhappy with the response at Stage 1 you can request for your complaint to be 

reviewed at Stage 2. 

 

Stage 2 

If you remain dissatisfied with the response at Stage 1, the matter will be independently 

investigated by our Complaints Team, and then considered by the Chief Executive for a final 

decision.  Your complaint and the Stage 1 response will be reviewed, and the Chief 

Executive will respond within 20 working days.   

If you remain dissatisfied with the response at Stage 2 of the Council’s Complaints 

Procedure you can take your complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO).   

 

If at either stage we need more time to respond to your complaint, we will explain the 

reasons for the delay and let you know when you can expect a full response. 

 

Local Government Ombudsman 

The LGO is an independent service set up by the Government to investigate complaints 

about Councils.  The Ombudsman will not investigate most complaints until they have been 

through the Council’s Complaints Procedure. If you remain dissatisfied with the outcome of 

your complaint at stage 2, you can complain to the Ombudsman at http://www.lgo.org.uk. 

  

  

Page 52

Appendix B

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


 

Complaints that do not fall in the scope of the Complaints Procedure 

Alternative Right of Appeal / Alternative Legal Remedy 

The Council will not respond to complaints where there is an alternative right of appeal. Such 

matters include, but are not restricted to: 

 Appeals against parking fines 

 Appeals against planning application decisions 

 Appeals against housing benefit decisions 

 Reviews of homelessness decisions 

 Fixed Penalty Notices 

  

Complaints about Councillors 

Complaints about Councillors are handled in a different way.  

If you want to complain about a Councillor, please contact the Council’s Monitoring Officer 

via email to monitoring.officer@tunbridgewells.gov.uk or in writing to the Monitoring Officer, 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN1 1RS. 

 

Complaints about Freedom of Information Decisions 

If you are unhappy with the way we have dealt with your request for information, or disagree 

with the decision, you can request a review by the Head of Legal Services.  This will be dealt 

with outside the Council’s Complaints Procedure.  The Head of Legal Services will respond 

to your review within 20 working days and following this if you remain dissatisfied you can 

contact the Information Commissioner’s Office.  

 

Unreasonable and Unreasonably Persistent Complaints  

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council is committed to dealing with all complaints fairly and 

impartially.  We acknowledge that some complaints can be difficult to resolve and can cause 

anxiety and distress to complainants.  Whilst we aim to resolve matters there are times 

where a small number of complainants may pursue their complaints in a way which hinders 

consideration of their complaints, and has a significant impact on the Council’s resources.   

In cases such as these we will follow our Policy on Unreasonable and Unreasonably 

Persistent Complaints, which may result in a complainant’s contact being restricted by the 

Council.     

 

August 2016 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council  

Page 53

Appendix B

mailto:monitoring.officer@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit & Governance 
Committee 

20 September 
2016 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Strategic Risk Report 
 

Final Decision-Maker Audit & Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  All 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance & Corporate 
Services (s151 Officer) 

Head of Service Jane Clarke – Head of Policy & Governance 

Lead Officer/Report Author Lee Colyer – Director of Finance & Corporate 
Services (s151 Officer) 

Classification Non-Exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 
 

1. That the Committee notes the risk management report and arrangements for 
managing strategic risk. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 

This report is concerned with the internal control and governance of the Council.  Successful 
controls and effective governance are a crucial underpinning for all corporate priorities. 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Management Board 1 September 2016 

Audit & Governance Committee 20 September 2016 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8(A)



 

Strategic Risk Update 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The report sets out the strategic risks identified by the Council and currently 

being managed and tracked by senior management.  The report provides a 
current update on the evaluated threat level and controls in place for each risk 
issue. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The risks included in the report were initially developed in a risk management 

workshop facilitated by Zurich Management Services on 10 December 2013, 
with the risks being formally adopted by Cabinet on 16 May 2014.  Since that 
time, risk owners have kept the risks and controls under review with periodic 
reporting both to the Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.   
 

2.2 The Council’s Management Board have also completed periodic overall reviews 
of the risks identified including adding new risks as circumstances develop (the 
most recent addition being Risk Scenario 10 – Development Programme – 
added in October 2014). 

 

2.3 Risk owners (managers) for certain risks are invited to attend the Audit and 
Governance Committee meetings to outline the Council’s approach to 
managing their particular risk(s). For this Committee meeting, members will be 
able to examine the risk(s) owned by William Benson, Chief Executive, namely; 

 

 Risk 3 Resident engagement;  

 Risk 5 National policy changes in the short term that impact negatively on 
TWBC; 

 Risk 7 Being unable to meet expectations within resources; and 

 Risk 9 Not managing control and change effectively – staff, management and 
political. 

 

 
3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 There is no legal requirement on the authority formally to monitor its risks, still 

less is there a defined framework to do so.  Although failing to monitor and 
record risks will leave the Council vulnerable to external criticism – for example 
by its external auditors who are required to assess the effectiveness of risk 
management when considering their annual Value For Money conclusion – the 
Council could decide that is a price worth paying against using some of its 
resources to identify and monitor risk. 
 

3.2 Even accepting the utility in gathering systematic monitoring information on the 
risks it faces, there is a wide range of different approaches the Council might 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8(A)



 

adopt.  Even if one looks solely at the local government sector, there are myriad 
formats, structures and arrangements adopted to record and present 
information to senior officers and members. 

 

 
4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The report sets out the risks using the methodology and format previously 

agreed by the Council, which is essentially the method advocated by Zurich 
from the 2013 risk workshop. 

 

 

5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 The Strategic Risk Register has undergone periodic review and examination by 

the Management Board, the Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.  
This stands in addition to ongoing monitoring by the identified risk owners.  This 
report incorporates feedback and updates from all sources. 

 
 

 
6. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

(name of officer 
and date) 

Legal including 
Human Rights Act 

None identified at this stage. Lee Colyer, 
Director of 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Services 

1 September 
2016 

Finance and other 
resources 

None identified at this stage. 

Staffing 
establishment 

None identified at this stage. 

Risk management   Risk management is the subject of the report but 
it does not of itself raise new risk issues for 
consideration. 

Environment  
and sustainability 

None identified at this stage. 

Community safety None identified at this stage. 

Health and Safety None identified at this stage. 

Health and 
wellbeing 

None identified at this stage. 

Equalities None identified at this stage. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8(A)



 

7. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 
report: 

 Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register Update September 2016 
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
None

Page 58

Agenda Item 8(A)



 

 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8(A
)



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Risk Update September 2016 
 

The Strategic Risk Profile chart below shows each risk scored onto the risk matrix graph. The 
further towards the top right hand corner the greater the risk to the Council. This is a dynamic 
and not always linear process; circumstances could mean changes in direction, identification 
of new risks or existing risks becoming resolved. The chart below provides only a snapshot 
on a particular date. 
 
The risk scenarios are: 
 

 CSR01: Cinema site remains undeveloped 

 CSR02: Unable to maximise economic opportunities and resolve infrastructure issues 

 CSR03: Resident engagement 

 CSR04: Unable to plan financially over the longer term 

 CSR05: National policy changes in short term impact negatively on TWBC and direction 

 CSR06: Missing something significant (dropping the ball) 

 CSR07: Unable to meet expectations within resources 

 CSR08: Inspector decision which challenges housing targets versus housing supply 

 CSR09: Not managing control and change effectively 

 CSR10: Development programme 

 
 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Profile September 2016 

Page 61

Appendix A



The table below tracks movement in the identified strategic risk areas since initial approval by Cabinet in April 2014. 
 

Risk Ref Title June 2014 March 2015  September 
2016 

2 Year 
Trend 

CSR 01 Cinema site remains undeveloped 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
12 

(4 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 02 
Unable to maximise economic opportunities and resolve 
infrastructure issues 

15 
(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

15 
(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

15 
(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 03 Resident engagement 
12 

(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
9 

(3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
9 

(3 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 04 Unable to plan financially over the longer term 
18 

(6 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
18 

(6 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
12 

(4 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 05 
National policy changes in short term impact negatively on 
TWBC and direction 

12 
(6 x Lk, 2 x Im) 

18 
(6 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

18 
(6 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 06 Missing something significant (dropping the ball) 
8 

(4 x Lk, 2 x Im) 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 07 Unable to meet expectations within resources 
10 

(5 x Lk, 2 x Im) 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 08 
Inspector decision which challenges housing targets vs housing 
supply 

16 
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

16 
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

12 
(4 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 09 Not managing control and change effectively 
12 

(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
12 

(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
12 

(4 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

CSR 10 Development programme n/a 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 
15 

(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)  

 

P
age 62

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 1: Cinema site remains undeveloped 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Significant (4) / Severe(3) 

Cinema Site 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner Jonathan MacDonald 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Cinema Site has a significant impact 
on the overall perception and reputation 

of Tunbridge Wells. Resolving the lack of 
progress on this site is not wholly within 
the Council’s control 

 

 Damage to reputation 

 Curtails attractiveness and 

discourages new investment in 
the Town Centre 

 

 

 Pre application meeting underway with new 

owners and officers as local planning authority.  

Timescale for receipt of planning application not 

yet determined. 

 

 

P
age 63

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 2: Being unable to maximise economic opportunities and resolve infrastructure issues   

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe (3) 

Economic development and 

infrastructure 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Jane March/Alan 

McDermott 

Officer Risk Owner David Candlin 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 There are economic opportunities but 

other areas are also chasing these. 

 The local economic offer and reputation 
is strong and improving with latent 

demand, particularly in retail and ‘in 
town’ while the Council has developed 

wider Borough opportunities, e.g. North 
Farm. 

 There are issues around cost of housing 

and infrastructure, particularly traffic 
congestion which could affect ability to 

make the most of opportunities. 

 Lose out to other areas 

 Unable to secure sufficient 
opportunities 

 Local area and people lose out 

 Insufficient inward investment 

 Impact on economic vitality of 

area 

 Curtails attractiveness 

 Impact on revenue streams 

and income 

 Suffer in comparison to others 

 Damage to reputation 

 

 Delivery by Highways Agency of A21 Tonbridge 

to Pembury dualling. 

 Delivery of North Farm infrastructure 
improvements. 

 Secure KMEP and SELEP support for delivery of 
key infrastructure improvements. 

 Maintain and develop working relationships with 
key partners, landowners & developers. 

 Ensure Local Plan and Transport Strategy 

address economic & transport issues. 

 Development Advisory Panel to review and 

inform Council development programme. 

 Professional advice sought to establish viability 
and support delivery of Council development 

programme schemes.  

 Professional advice secured to establish viability of 
transport schemes 

  

P
age 64

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 3: Resident engagement 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Low (3) / Severe (3) 

Local engagement 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 As a result of the significant financial 
pressures it is experiencing, the Council 

has discontinued a number of the 
mechanisms it has used to engage with 
residents including Ward Walks and 

annual residents’ surveys. 

 Local engagement is crucial in place 

shaping and future direction. There is a 
need to ensure mechanisms are in place 

to ensure that decisions are grounded in 
empirical evidence. 

 

 Direction and decisions out of 
line with public opinion 

 Impact on key areas, e.g. 
growth or economic 
development 

 Directing resources to wrong 
areas, potentially away from 

areas of most need 

 

 The Council has set up a number of 
forums/advisory groups representing parish 

councils, residents, retailers and businesses. 

 The Council has undertaken a Borough-wide 
survey. 

 The Council makes proactive use of social 
media both to listen and to engage with 

residents. 

The Council will engage comprehensively as 

part of the process of updating the Five Year 

Plan and as part of the various significant 

projects contained within it. 

 

P
age 65

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 4: Unable to plan financially over the longer term  

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Very High (4) /Severe (3) 

Longer Term Financial Planning 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Cllr Paul Barrington-King Officer Risk Owner Lee Colyer 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in 

place 

 Core Government funding has reduced significantly in 

favour of incentive based schemes reliant on growth. 

 The government have offered a four year funding 
settlement from 2016/17 which would result in Revenue 

Support Grant (£1.6 million) disappearing. 

 Negative grant is still a possibility in 2019/20. 

 There is a review underway on the New Homes Bonus 
scheme.  

 There is a change in the rate and trajectory of fees and 

charges with a mismatch between demand and revenue. 
A lack of flexibility here can make it difficult to manage 

demand flow. 

 The Infrastructure Bill will transfer the statutory 
responsibility for Land Charges to the Land Registry. This 

will substantially reduce the Councils income and write-
off the investment in technology and performance in this 

area. There is also a risk to the public and local 
businesses as national government computer projects 
have a poor track record of delays, budget overspends 

and delivering expected outcome. 

 Reactive decision making and 

budgeting rather than 
planning. 

 Short term perspective 

reinforced. 

 Central control of fees, 

burdens the Council Tax payer 
rather than the user of the 
service. 

 Impact on decisions. 

 Unpredictability and trust. 

 Resources and staffing 
reduced or redeployed. 

 Impact on staff retention. 

 Credibility damaged. 

 Impact on partnership 

working 

 Missed opportunities to 
collaborate. 

 Revenue budget balanced 

without the use of general 
reserves. 

 MTFS has manageable deficits. 

 Reducing exposure to changes 
to government funding such as 

Revenue Support Grant and New 
Homes Bonus. 

 User Pays Principle to recover 

costs where allowable. 

 Government has provided more 

flexibility surrounding Council 
Tax income, and a review of 
Planning and Licensing Fees is 

underway. 

P
age 66

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 5:  National policy changes in short term that impact negatively on TWBC and on direction 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Very High (6) / Severe (3) 

Central government policy changes 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The past few years have been 
characterised by significant changes to 

the public sector environment and the 
regulations that govern it. Further 
significant changes will be taking place 

in the areas of planning and finance 
(including a fundamental review of 

needs assessment and Business Rates). 
There is also uncertainty over the 

powers associated with a current push 
towards ‘devolution deals’ and the 
requirements of government to secure 

such a deal. 

 On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom 

of Great Britain and Northern Ireland 
voted to leave the European Union. The 
impacts of this decision have the 

potential to be significant but at this 
time it is difficult to quantify how this 

will affect this Council’s ability to plan 
and deliver its priorities. 

 Changes to external 
environment in which TWBC 

operates 

 Unpredictability and frequent 
changes required to Council 

operations 

 Increased costs/reduced 

income 

 

 Flexibility encouraged amongst staff. 

 Partnership working presents opportunities to 

collaborate (e.g. in areas such as welfare 
reform). 

 Constant monitoring of changes being proposed 

or introduced. 

 Ongoing discussions with KCC and neighbouring 

councils to explore opportunities for aligning or 
devolving services. 

 Engagement with the LGA and central 
government. 

 Proactive work with representative bodies. 

 

 

 

 

 Further reports will come before members as 

the implications of BREXIT become clearer. 

 

P
age 67

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 6:  Missing something significant (£100k – 250k impact) – ‘dropping the ball’ 

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe(3) 

Reduced staff and management 

resources 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner   Lee Colyer 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council has reduced staff 

numbers and resources with a loss 
of a number of specialist posts and 
increased working in partnership 

with other Authorities. 

  Reduced staff and management 

resources can affect agility to 
respond quickly and with flexibility 
to new requirements from 

community or other stakeholders. 

 Increased threat from cyber 

security attacks. 

 The Information Commissioner can 
now issue fines up to £500,000 for 

data protection breaches. 

 

 Key person dependency 

 Staff being pulled in different 
directions 

 Pressure on staff 

 Loss of knowledge 

 Fail to respond to legislative or 

regulatory requirements 

 Mistakes made/things missed 

 Complaints 

 Claims/Legal action/Compensation 

 Adverse publicity  

 National and local reputation 
affected 

 Financial loss 

 Greater Exposure to fraud and 
transparency requiring worldwide 

publication 

 Health & Safety added as a standing item to MB 

and MT Agenda 

 Resilience through partnership working 

 Shared expertise through partnership working 

 Review of EP arrangements following recent 
sustained flooding 

 Internal Audit identify areas where controls 
need to be improved – action is then taken by 
management 

 Management Board consider risk on a quarterly 
basis – including horizon scanning  

 Further communication to staff will be provided 
on requirements and risks from additional 
transparency rules. 

 Information Governance Forum established. 

 Designation of a Senior Information Risk 

Officer. 

 

P
age 68

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 7: Being unable to meet expectations within resources  
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe (3) 

Reduced resources/increased demands 

and expectations 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner   William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council has reduced staff numbers 
and resources but is more ambitious 

with more priorities and is seeking to do 
more than before.  

  The local community is vocal, 
demanding and articulate with 
significant expectations. 

 

 Increased stress and strain 

 Impact on morale 

 Reliance on key and fewer 
people 

 Services/staff are stretched 

 Impact on service quality 

 Satisfaction diminished 

 Campaigns launched by local 
community 

 Adverse publicity 

 Resources required to respond 
to campaigns 

 Damage to reputation 

 

 Reduced number of priorities in strategic plan 

 Regular consideration by Management board of 

resources and additional resources put in place to 
support priorities (including additional resources 

recently agreed to support the Council’s property 
section). 

 Introduction of a Programme Management Office 

to oversee priority projects. 

 Appropriate use of external capacity and 

expertise. 

 Performance monitoring helps to identify pressure 
points 

 Regular sickness monitoring 

 Quarterly analysis and reporting of complaints 

identifying any trends 

 Identifying resilience through partnerships 

 Adopting an “enabling” approach to encourage 

community to deliver local services 

 

P
age 69

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 8:  Inspector decision which challenges housing target vs housing supply 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact   Significant (4) / Severe (3) 

Housing target/supply 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Alan McDermott Officer Risk Owner Jonathan MacDonald 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 There has been a change in housing 
formula towards growth. There is 

resistance to housing growth locally with 
a difference between housing target and 
housing supply levels 

 The statutory revision to the method of 
calculating housing need, “Objectively 

Assessed Need” (OAN) indicates that the 
Borough’s need is more than doubled. 
Whilst this is before consideration is 

given to reductions because of 
constraints this effectively means that 

policies limiting development to within 
the limits of built development fall away 

 Risk of appeals has increased 

 

 Council lose control of situation 

 Increase in level of housing on 

greenfield sites 

 Member and community dissatisfaction 

 Increased traffic congestion 

 Impact on infrastructure 

 Financial benefit of planned growth – 

opportunity impact 

 Significant new costs to support 
production of new Core Strategy/Local 

Plan 

 Potential significant appeal related costs 

following refusal of major residential 
development 

 Planning by appeal potentially leading to 

loss of New Homes Bonus  

 Potential legal fees/officer costs/loss of 

section 106 

 Work on new Local Plan has commenced. 

 Regular reporting to Planning Policy 

Working Group/Cabinet member/ 
Planning Committee on risk and 
legislative changes 

 Restructure of Planning Team to support 
flexible working has been completed. 

 Consideration by the constitutional 
working party. 

 Site allocations document found sound by 

independent inspector.  Council recently 
has been notified of an application for 

judicial review which council will defend if 
necessary. 

 

 

P
age 70

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 9:  Not managing control and change effectively – Staff, Management, and Political 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Significant (4)/ Severe (3) 

 Shared Services – control and change  

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council is involved in joint service 
arrangements around a number of 

service areas (most notably Mid Kent 
Services) 

 Managerial responsibility for these 

services is largely within other 
authorities which limits control of the 

services and their ability to contribute 
towards ‘corporate’ initiatives (such as 

emergency planning) 

 Opportunities for partnership working 
and devolution are being explored with 

neighbouring councils and KCC but this 
is on a different geographic footprint to 

Mid Kent Service. 

 

 Staff dissatisfaction/loss of 
goodwill 

 Service delivery affected 

 Strain on people working in 
partnership 

 Impact felt by wider 
organisation 

 Political dissatisfaction 

 

 MKS is overseen by both a Board and shared 
service boards. 

 The operation of the ‘client side’ has been 
strengthened through ‘shared service boards’ and 
regular performance reporting. 

 The overarching governance arrangements have 
been reviewed and updated as have the individual 

collaboration agreements for each shared service.  

 A Mid Kent Services Director post has been 

created to provide a greater sense of direction and 
‘esprit de corps’ within Mid Kent Services. 

 Reviews will be undertaken of the implementation 

of shared services to learn lessons. 

 

P
age 71

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 10:  Development Programme 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe(3) 

Development Programme 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner David Candlin 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council has identified a number of 
development opportunities to support 

the growth of the local economy. 
 Development of these Council owned 

sites is to be led by the Council which 

brings additional financial and property 
risks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 Impact on revenue streams 
and income 

 Damage to reputation 

 Insufficient professional 
expertise 

 Procurement and issues of 
delay 

 Economic climate 

 Development Advisory Panel (DAP) to review and 
inform Council development programme. 

 Officer Group established to manage and control 
programme. 

 Professional advice sought to establish viability 

and support delivery of Council development 
programme schemes.   

 Utilisation of framework agreements where 
appropriate to manage procurement timetables. 

 Specific risk logs developed for each 
development site and monitored by DAP and 
Officer Group. 

 Staged approvals for development progress to 
manage cost exposure and risk 

 Appointment of additional professional staff to 
enhance in house experience 

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 72

A
ppendix A



 

Audit & Governance 
Committee 

20 September 
2016 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

External Auditor Procurement 
 

Final Decision-Maker Audit and Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Cllr Barrington-King, Portfolio-holder for Finance 
and Governance 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance & Corporate 
Services (s151 Officer) 

Head of Service Jane Fineman – Deputy s151 Officer 

Lead Officer/Report Author Rich Clarke – Head of Audit Partnership 

Classification Non-Exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 
 

1. That the Audit & Governance Committee notes the latest and further information on 
the external auditor appointment. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 

This report concerns the internal control and governance of the Council, underpinning all 
corporate priorities. 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Audit & Governance Committee 20 September 2016 

(Timetable from here may vary due to timing of PSAA’s offer)  

Audit & Governance Committee 

(If received, to recommend to Full Council whether to opt-in) 

5 December 2016 

Full Council 

(formal response to PSAA on whether to opt in) 

7 December 2016 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

External Auditor Procurement 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To give an outline to the Committee on the Council’s alternatives for external 

audit appointment. 

1.2 The Council’s engagement with its External Auditor is due to expire, and it will 
need to appoint a new auditor before 31 December 2017.  The new auditor will 
take on responsibility for examining the 2018/19 financial statements and 
deliver their first opinion in July 2019. 

1.3 This paper follows a previous paper to this Committee on 26 July 2016 
outlining the alternatives open.  Rather than repeat that detail, this paper 
focuses on the specific information sought by members to shape further 
discussion and updated information received in the last two months. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Committee sought three specific extra pieces of information during its 

discussion on possible routes for external auditor appointment: 

 Likely costs of an individual procurement;  

 Attitude of neighbouring and other authorities towards the procurement 
routes;  

 Experience of the NHS in auditor selection.  

2.2 This report has been formed on the basis of further research on each area and 
aims to help members in discussing the topic.  One important condition 
remains: the power for local authorities to select their own auditors is new, and 
untested.  Therefore, this report involves speculation and interpretation of 
legislation and guidelines not shaped by precedent. 

2.3 The report also contains a brief update and clarification as events have moved 
forward since July. 

 

3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 The three alternatives available to councils remain: 

 Directly appointing auditors based on its own Auditor Panel’s 

recommendation; 

Page 74

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

 Directly appointing auditors based on a joint Auditor Panel’s 

recommendation; and 

 Handing the appointment decision and contract management over to an 

Appointed Person (the “Sector-Led Body”). 

3.2 The July report noted other Appointed Persons could come forward apart from 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA). There remains no sign of 

any other body considering putting itself to the Secretary of State for approval 

and, given the timescales, little reasonable possibility of an alternative body 

emerging.  Therefore the Council should continue the understanding that 

opting in to PSAA’s proposal will be the sector-led approach. 

Updates since July 

3.3 PSAA have provided a frequently asked questions (FAQ) document on the 

main principles of the sector-led approach.  This is attached at Appendix A.  

The timetable for Tunbridge Wells on page one of this report follows the 

timetable suggested by PSAA. 

Procurement Costs 

3.4 There are limited cash costs to the Council undertaking the procurement 

alone. The Council must advertise, both for independent members of the 

Auditor Panel and for the audit contract itself, but in both cases the Council 

would access online advertising meeting demands without incurring cost. 

3.5 Regulations demand Auditor Panel members have their reasonable expenses 

met, but councils must decide when drawing up the job descriptions whether 

and how much to pay members.  This decision, multiplied by the number of 

independent Panel members needed (a minimum of two) represents the only 

cash cost of this procurement route.  As the Panel has continuing 

responsibilities beyond procurement these costs would recur. 

3.6 The more significant cost will be officer time.  This is a new power and one 

with little chance to draw on expertise from other authorities.  As a result, 

documentation such as the invitation to tender, criteria selection, evaluation 

scoring and final letter of engagement must be locally created or adapted from 

non-local government sources.  Although the Council could achieve this task 

based on officers’ expertise, it will be time-consuming.  An early estimate, 

considering audit, legal and finance time needed, is around 10-15 days. 

  

Page 75

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

Attitude of other authorities 

3.7 The July report cited data from PSAA suggesting upwards of 200 authorities 

were potentially considering opting in to the sector-led body.  At the time, we 

speculated that this information drew from an LGA survey with a low response 

rate so undertook to complete more research into how other authorities 

intended to appoint their auditors. 

3.8 The research included consultation with CIPFA (who wrote the guidance on 

Auditor Panels and offered training earlier this year), local and regional internal 

auditor networks and a (brief) examination of audit committee minutes from all 

354 English local authorities. 

3.9 The conclusion is that it has not been possible to identify a single other 

authority openly considering or taking steps toward creating an Auditor Panel.  

Every authority having expressed a view has favoured the sector-led 

approach, with several audit committees having already recommended ahead 

of receiving PSAA’s formal offer. 

3.10 The table below summarises the position among Kent authorities, as 

explained by minutes of their audit committees (or equivalent). 

Authority Meeting Conclusion 

Ashford BC 16 Jun Recommended Sector-Led Body 

Canterbury CC 10 Mar No recommendation but asked for further 

details on Joint Panel and Sector-Led Body 

Dartford BC 29 Jun Noted, no preferences expressed 

Dover DC 3 Dec Recommended Sector-Led Body 

Gravesham BC 16 Jun No recommendation but preferred Sector-Led 

Body (Local Panel also discussed) 

Kent CC 21 Jul Recommended Sector-Led Body 

Maidstone BC  No public discussion identified 

Medway UA  No public discussion identified 

Sevenoaks DC 15 Mar Expressed interest in Sector-Led Body 

Shepway DC 29 Jun Recommended Sector-Led Body 

Swale BC 8 Jun No recommendation but asked for further 

details on Joint Panel and Sector-Led Body 

Thanet DC 9 Dec Noted, no preferences expressed 

Tonbridge & 

Malling BC 

5 Apr Recommended Sector-Led Body 

 

  

Page 76

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

NHS Experience 

3.11 The Government created Foundation Trusts (FT) as semi-autonomous units 

within the National Health Service in the Health and Social Care (Community 

Health and Standards) Act 2003.  The Act allowed Health Trusts to seek 

approval from a newly created regulator – Monitor – to work with less 

oversight from central NHS control.  Among the added freedoms given to 

Foundation Trusts is the ability to choose their own external auditor rather 

than have one appointed in arrangements similar to local government. 

3.12 So far, 152 Trusts have successfully gained Foundation status.  One key 

governance change for Foundation Trusts is setting up Governors, individuals 

elected or selected to represent various interest groups in the community 

including patients and employees.  Selecting an external auditor is a matter for 

these Governors rather than the executive or non-executive members of the 

Trust’s Board, although board members typically advise Governors and 

manage any procurement. Foundation Trusts need not to seek a change in 

auditors; board members are free to recommend to Governors that existing 

arrangements continue. 

3.13 It is also an important caution that the responsibilities of auditors vary for 

Foundation Trusts.  The Foundation Trust accounts are much closer in form to 

company accounts and so, typically, ask less of an auditor. This reduced 

demand and scope is reflected in the fee.  An equivalent change will not occur 

in local government, where the National Audit Office sets the same demands 

of auditors regardless of their appointment method. 

3.14 In this review the annual reports of the five Foundation Trusts approved 

between 1 April 2012 and 31 October 2014 were examined.  This period was 

chosen to provide enough post-conversion analysis to see if the pattern of fee 

changes continued while being recent enough that historical records from 

before change-over are still online. 

Details of the five Trusts are below: 

Trust Type Date Approved Operating 
Expenses 
15/16 

Net Assets 
15/16 

Great Ormond 
Street 

Specialist 
Teaching Acute 

1 April 2012 £403m £496m 

Royal Free Teaching Acute 1 April 2012 £1,015m £558m 

West Midlands Ambulance 1 January 2013 £231m £52m 

Kingston Acute 1 May 2013 £241m £94m 

West Sussex Teaching Acute 1 July 2013 £418m £248m 

 
Four of the five Trusts changed their external auditor during the review period (3 years 

approval, 3 years post-approval) 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

Trust Auditors (pre-FT) Auditors (as-FT) Last 
Tendered 

Great Ormond 
Street 

Deloitte Deloitte 2013 

Royal Free Audit Commission Grant Thornton (until 2013) 
PWC (from 2013) 

2013 

West Midlands Audit Commission (until 2012) 
Grant Thornton (from 2012) 

Grant Thornton (2012) 
KPMG (from 2013) 

2013 

Kingston Audit Commission (until 2012) 
Grant Thornton (from 2012) 

Grant Thornton Unknown 

West Sussex 
 

Audit Commission (until 2012) 
Ernst & Young (from 2012) 

Ernst & Young 2014 

 

3.15 The table below shows changes to audit fees over this period. Note the 

amounts below are purely for the statutory audit, so do not cover any extra 

fees that Trusts paid to their auditors for additional work.  Those extra fees can 

be significant, especially around the time of change-over (for instance, Royal 

Free extra fees topped £100k). 

Trust FT -3yrs FT -2yrs FT -1yr FT FT +1yr FT +2yrs 

Great Orm £150k £160k £170k £116k £116k £100k 

Royal Free £141k £190k £200k £107k £123k £134k 

West Mids 127k £115k £115k £57k £57k £57k 

Kingston £94k £128k £102k £48k £64k £48k 

West Sus £191k £192k £162k £114k £72k £80k 

 

3.16 When examined as an index (with FT-3 as the base year) the change in fees 

for each Trust is as the chart below. For comparison, the chart also includes 

an index of changes to TWBC audit fees over the past six years. 

 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

FT -3 FT -2 FT -1 FT FT +1 FT +2 

Western Sussex Kingston West Midlands Ambulance 

Royal Free Great Ormond Street Tunbridge Wells 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

3.17 Tunbridge Wells’ external audit fees have fallen as far and as fast largely in 

parallel with Trusts moving to Foundation Status.  One explanation could be 

that public audit fees had been historically high and spent the past few years 

unwinding.  That unwinding prompted by, in health, Trusts moving to select 

their own auditors and in local government by new contracts following abolition 

of the Audit Commission.  On that analysis, one may argue there is little scope 

for further fall in local government audit fees whatever route to procurement an 

authority undertakes.  Those FTs who re-tendered after approval (so 

unaffected by change in audit scope) saw no significant further saving. 

3.18 Whether procurement route does make a difference to audit fees in local 

government will only become clear once the new arrangements are in place 

from late-2017 onwards.  There are several reasons which might influence 

audit fees including the firm’s bid costs, location, timing, expertise needed, 

current and future risk and so on.  How these causes play out in commercial 

decisions of auditors invited to bid for one of PSAA’s national contracts as 

against a local arrangement is a matter for conjecture. 

 

 
4 PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 No decision is required now; we present this report for information.  The final 

decision on which route to take must be by the Full Council.  This includes a 
decision, following invitation, on whether or not to opt into any arrangements 
proposed by a sector-led body. 

 
4.2 As proposed in the timetable above, a further report will be brought forward 

once PSAA’s offer is known in detail.  At that time this Committee will be 
asked for a recommendation to Full Council on whether or not to accept 
PSAA’s offer. 

 

 
5 CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 This paper draws on feedback from the initial discussion in July 2016, 

providing further information to members to help inform a recommendation to 
Full Council. 
  

Page 79

Agenda Item 8(B)



 

6 CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

(name of officer 
and date) 

Legal including 
Human Rights Act 

The report is presented for information rather than 
decision and so presents no cross-cutting issues 
or implications at present. 

Rich Clarke 

 

Head of Audit 
Partnership 

 

September 2016 

Finance and other 
resources 

 

Staffing 
establishment 

 

Risk management    

Environment  
and sustainability 

 

Community safety  

Health and Safety  

Health and 
wellbeing 

 

Equalities  

 

7 REPORT APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A: Frequently Asked Questions on the role and approach of the Sector Led Body, 
published by PSAA in August 2016. 

 

 
8 BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
Local Audit (Auditor Panel) Regulations 2014 
Local Audit (Appointing Persons) Regulations 2015 
Further details on Auditor Panels are included in CIPFA’s comprehensive guide produced 
with CLG and available for free download here. 
 
 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8(B)

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/3224/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/192/contents/made
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf


 

1 
 

Appointing person: Frequently asked questions  

Question Response 

1. What is an appointing person? Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) has been 
specified as an appointing person under the Local Audit 
(Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 and has the power to 
make auditor appointments for audits of the accounts from 
2018/19 on behalf of principal local government bodies that opt 
in, in accordance with the Regulations. Eligible bodies are 
principal local government bodies listed in schedule 2 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. This includes county 
councils, district councils, London Borough councils, unitary 
authorities, metropolitan councils, police bodies, fire and rescue 
authorities, joint authorities, combined authorities, national park 
authorities, conservation boards, PTEs, waste authorities, and 
the GLA and its functional bodies. 
  
The ‘appointing person’ is sometimes referred to as the sector-
led body. 
 
PSAA is a company owned by the LGA’s Improvement and 
Development Agency (IDeA) and was established to operate 
the transitional arrangements following closure of the Audit 
Commission. 

2. When will invitations to opt in be issued? The date by which principal authorities will need to opt into the 
appointing person arrangement is not yet finalised. The aim is 
to award contracts to audit firms by June 2017, giving six 
months to consult with authorities on appointments before the 
31 December 2017 deadline.  We anticipate that invitations to 
opt in will be issued before December 2016 at the latest. 

P
age 81

A
ppendix A



 

2 
 

Question Response 

Authorities will have a minimum period of eight weeks to 
respond to the invitation. 
 
In order to maximise the potential economies of scale from 
agreeing large contracts with firms, and to manage any auditor 
independence issues, PSAA needs as much certainty as 
possible about the volume and location of work it is able to offer 
to firms. Our provisional timetable suggests that we will need to 
start preparing tender documentation early in 2017, so we will 
need to know by then which authorities want to be included. 

3. Who can accept the invitation to opt in? In accordance with Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015, a principal authority will need to 
make the decision to opt in at full council (authority meeting as 
a whole), except where the authority is a corporation sole (such 
as a police and crime commissioner), in which case the 
function must be exercised by the holder of the office. 

4. Can we join after it has been set up or do we have to join at 
the beginning? 

The Regulations require that once the invitations to opt in have 
been issued, there will be a minimum period of eight weeks for 
you to indicate acceptance of the invitation. One of the main 
benefits of a an appointing person approach is the ability to 
achieve economies of scale as a result of being able to offer 
larger volumes of work. The greater the number of participants 
we have signed up at the outset, the better the economies of 
scale we are likely to achieve. This will not prevent authorities 
from joining the sector-led arrangements in later years, but they 
will need to make their own arrangements to appoint an auditor 
in the interim. In order to be in the best position we would 
encourage as many authorities as possible to commit by 
accepting the invitation within the specified timeframe. 

P
age 82

A
ppendix A



 

3 
 

Question Response 

5. Will membership be free for existing members of the LGA? 
 

The option to join the appointing person scheme will be open to 
all principal local government authorities listed under Schedule 
2 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. There will not 
be a fee to join the sector-led arrangements. The audit fees 
that opted-in bodies will be charged will cover the costs to 
PSAA of appointing auditors and managing the arrangements. 
We believe that audit fees achieved through large contracts will 
be lower than the costs that individual authorities will be able to 
negotiate. In addition, by opting into the PSAA offer, authorities 
will avoid the costs of their own procurement and the 
requirement to set up an auditor panel with independent 
members. 

6. How will we be able to influence the development of the 
appointing person scheme and associated contracts with 
audit firms? 

We have not yet finalised the governance arrangements and 
we are considering the options, including how best to obtain 
stakeholder input. We are considering establishing a 
stakeholder engagement panel or advisory panel which can 
comment on our proposals. PSAA continues to work in 
partnership with the LGA in setting up the appointing person 
scheme and you can feed in comments and observations to 
PSAA by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk and via the 
LGA and their Principal Advisors. 

7. Will there be standard contract terms and conditions? The audit contracts between PSAA and the audit firms will 
require firms to deliver audits compliant with the National Audit 
Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice. We are aware that 
authorities would like to understand how performance and 
delivery will be monitored and managed. This is one of the 
issues that could be discussed with the stakeholder advisory 
panel (see Q6). 

8. What will be the length of the contracts? The optimal length of contract between PSAA and firms has not 
been decided. We would welcome views on what the sector 

P
age 83

A
ppendix A

mailto:generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk


 

4 
 

Question Response 

considers the optimal length of audit contract. We anticipate 
that somewhere between three and five years would be 
appropriate. 

9. In addition to the Code of Audit Practice requirements set 
out by the NAO, will the contract be flexible to enable 
authorities to include the audit of wholly owned companies 
and group accounts? 

Local authority group accounts are part of the accounts 
produced under the CIPFA SORP and are subject to audit in 
line with the NAO Code of Audit Practice. They will continue to 
be part of the statutory audit.  
 
Company audits are subject to the provisions of the Companies 
Act 2006 and are not covered by the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015. Local authority companies will be 
able to appoint the same audit firm as PSAA appoints to 
undertake the principal body audit, should they so wish. 

10. Will bodies that opt in be able to seek information from 
potential suppliers and undertake some form of evaluation 
to choose a supplier? 

PSAA will run the tendering exercise, and will evaluate bids 
and award contracts. PSAA will consult authorities on individual 
auditor appointments. The appointment of an auditor 
independently of the body to be audited is an important feature 
of the appointing person arrangements and will continue to 
underpin strong corporate governance in the public sector. 

11. Will the price be fixed or will there be a range of prices? The fee for the audit of a body that opts in will reflect the size, 
audit risk and complexity of the work required. PSAA will 
establish a system for setting the fee which is fair to all opted-in 
authorities. As a not-for-profit organisation, PSAA will be able 
to return any surpluses to participating authorities after all costs 
have been met. 

12. We have shared service arrangements with our 
neighbouring bodies and we are looking to ensure that we 
share the same auditor. Will the appointing person scheme 
allow for this? 

PSAA will be able to make appointments to all principal local 
government bodies listed in Schedule 2 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 that are ‘relevant authorities’ and not 
excluded as a result of being smaller authorities, for example 
parish councils.  

P
age 84

A
ppendix A



 

5 
 

Question Response 

 
In setting up the new arrangements, one of our aims is to make 
auditor appointments that take account of joint working and 
shared service arrangements. Requests for the same auditor 
as other authorities will need to be balanced with auditor 
independence considerations. As we have set out in our 
prospectus, auditors must be independent of the bodies they 
audit. PSAA will have an obligation under the provisions of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in compliance with 
the Ethical Standards issued by the Financial Reporting 
Council to ensure that every auditor appointment it makes 
passes this test. We will need information from opted-in 
authorities on potential independence considerations and joint 
working arrangements, and will also need information on 
independence issues from the audit firms. Risks to auditor 
independence include, for example, an audit firm having 
previously been engaged to advise on a major procurement 
which could, of course, later be subject to audit.  

13. We have a joint committee which no longer has a statutory 
requirement to have an external auditor but has agreed in 
the interests of all parties to continue to engage one. Is it 
possible to use this process as an option to procure the 
external auditor for the joint committee? 

The requirement for joint committees to produce statutory 
accounts ceased after production of the 2014/15 accounts and 
they are therefore not listed in Schedule 2. Joint committees 
that have opted to produce accounts voluntarily and obtain 
non-statutory assurance on them will need to make their own 
local arrangements. 

14. How will the appointing person scheme ensure audit firms 
are not over-stretched and that the competition in the 
market place is increased? 

The number of firms eligible to undertake local public audit will 
be regulated through the Financial Reporting Council and the 
recognised Supervisory Bodies (RSBs). Only appropriately 
accredited firms will be able to bid for appointments whether 
that is through PSAA or an auditor panel. The seven firms 
appointed by PSAA and the Audit Commission generally 

P
age 85

A
ppendix A



 

6 
 

Question Response 

maintain a dedicated public sector practice with staff trained 
and experienced in public sector work.  
 
One of the advantages of the appointing person option is to 
make appointments that help to ensure that each successful 
firm has a sufficient quantum of work to make it possible for 
them to invest in public sector specific training, maintain a 
centre of excellence or hub that will mean: 

 firms have a regional presence;   

 greater continuity of staff input; and 

 a better understanding the local political, economic and 
social environment. 

15. Will the appointing person scheme contract with a number 
of different audit firms and how will they be allocated to 
authorities? 

PSAA will organise the contracts so that there is a minimum 
number of firms appointed nationally. The minimum is probably 
four or five (depending on the number of bodies that opt in). 
This is required, not just to ensure competition and capacity, 
but because each firm is required to comply with the FRC’s 
ethical standards. This means that an individual firm may not 
be appointable for ‘independence’ reasons, for example, 
because they have undertaken consultancy work at an audited 
body. PSAA will consult on appointments that allow each firm a 
balanced portfolio of work subject to independence 
considerations. 

16. What will be the process to feed in opinions from 
customers of current auditors if there are issues? 

PSAA will seek feedback on its auditors as part of its 
engagement with the sector. PSAA will continue to have a clear 
complaints process and will also undertake contract monitoring 
of the firms it appoints. 

17. What is the timetable for set up and key decisions? We expect the key points in the timetable to be broadly: 

P
age 86

A
ppendix A



 

7 
 

Question Response 

 establish an overall strategy for procurement - by 31 
October 2016; 

 achieve ‘sign-up’ of scheme members - by early January 
2017; 

 invite tenders from audit firms - by 31 March 2017; 

 award contracts - by 30 June 2017; 

 consult on and make final auditor appointments - by 31 
December 2017; and 

 consult on, propose audit fees and publish fees - by 31 
March 2018. 

18. What are the terms of reference of the appointing person? PSAA is wholly owned by the IDeA (the IDeA is wholly owned 
by the LGA). PSAA will continue to operate as an independent 
company, although there will be changes to its governance 
arrangements and its founding documents to reflect the fact 
that it will be an appointing person rather than a transitional 
body.  

19. Will the appointing person take on all audit panel roles and 
therefore mitigate the need for there to be one in each 
individual authority? 

Opting into the appointing person scheme will remove the need 
to set up an auditor panel. This is set out in the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015. 

P
age 87

A
ppendix A



 

8 
 

Question Response 

20. What will be the arrangements for overseeing the quality of 
audit work undertaken by the audit firms appointed by the 
appointing person? 

PSAA will only contract with firms which have a proven track 
record in undertaking public audit work. In accordance with the 
2014 Act, firms must be registered with one of the chartered 
accountancy institutes acting in the capacity of a Recognised 
Supervisory Body (RSB). The quality of their work will be 
subject to scrutiny by both the RSB and the Financial Reporting 
Council (FRC). Current indications are that fewer than ten large 
firms will register meaning that small local firms will not be 
eligible to be appointed to local public audit roles. 
 

PSAA will ensure that firms maintain the appropriate 
registration and will liaise closely with RSBs and the FRC to 
ensure that any concerns are detected at an early stage and 
addressed effectively in the new regime. The company will take 
a close interest in feedback from audited bodies and in the 
rigour and effectiveness of firms’ own quality assurance 
arrangements, recognising that these represent some of the 
earliest and most important safety nets for identifying and 
remedying any problems arising. We will liaise with the NAO to 
help ensure that guidance to auditors is updated when 
necessary. 

 

P
age 88

A
ppendix A



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 

 

 

REPORT TITLE 20/9/16 5/12/16 4/4/17 June 
2017 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Annual Report 
 

   X 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

   X 

Internal Audit Operation Plan 
 

  X  

Internal Audit Interim Report  
 

 X   

Annual Revision of Audit Charter 
 

  X  

Annual Audit Letter 
 

 X X  

Certification of Grant  Claims and 
Returns 
 

 X   

External Audit Plan 
 

  X  

External Audit Progress Report 
 

 X   

Planned Audit Fee 
 

   X 

Draft Financial Report  2016/17 
(Statement of Accounts) 
 

   X 

Financial Report and Audit Findings 
2016/17 
 

    

Annual Complaints Report and Local 
Government Ombudsman Annual 
Review 
 

X    

Update on Member Complaints 
 

X X X X 

Strategic Risk Review (incorporating 
Annual Risk Management Summary 
in June) 
  

  X  

Attendance of Strategic Risk Owners 
 

X X X X 

Public Sector External Audit 
Appointment 
 

X X   

Policy Framework Revision 
  

 X   

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 26 July 2016
	5(A) Update on Complaints Received Under the Members' Code of Conduct
	6(A) * Proposed Changes to the Constitution (Planning Scheme of Delegation) as Recommended by the Constitutional Review Working Party
	Item 6(A) - Proposed changes to the Constitution - Appendix A
	Item 6(A) - Proposed changes to the Constitution - Appendix B
	Item 6(A) - Proposed changes to the Constitution - Appendix C - minutes of CRWP

	7(A) Annual Complaints Report and Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review
	Item 7(A) - Complaints report - Appendix A - LGO Annual Complaints Letter
	Item 7(A) - Complaints report - Appendix B - Complaints Policy August 2016

	8(A) Strategic Risk Report
	Item 8(A) - Strategic Risk Register update - Appendix A

	8(B) External Auditor Procurement
	Item 8(B) - External auditor procurement - Appendix A - FAQs

	9 Future Work Programme

